


HUDSON COUNTY COMMUNITY COLLEGE 
70 Sip Avenue 

Jersey City, NJ  07306 

Regular Meeting – Board of Trustees 

Tuesday, November 26, 2024 

5:00 P.M. 

Mary T. Norton Board Room and Via Zoom 

In-Person: Mary T. Norton Board Room, 4th Floor, 70 Sip Avenue, Jersey City, New Jersey 

Members of the public may also use the following link and join the Zoom Meeting Webinar via Audio-only: 

https://zoom.us/j/97566676811?pwd=bXFybEpENHdBT3N6cmVaOExxYmNpQT09 
Passcode: 771689 

Telephone: 1 305 224 1968 
Webinar ID: 975 6667 6811 
Passcode: 771689 

Please note that members of the public who dial-in by telephone will not have the ability to speak during 
Comments from the Public and will be in listen mode only.  

All microphones for public participants are muted except during the Comments from the Public portion of 
the meeting. If you wish to make comments and are attending via Zoom, please use the "Raise Hand" 
notification icon at the bottom of the screen.  When you hear your name announced, you may address the 
Board.  After the speaker's time ends, their microphone will be muted to allow others the opportunity to 
address the Board.   

AGENDA 

I. CALL TO ORDER - FLAG SALUTE Chair Peña 

II. ROLL CALL AND RECOGNITION OF VISITORS

Trustees:

Lisa Camacho, Student Alumni Representative 
Edward DeFazio, Secretary/Treasurer 
Joseph Doria 
Pamela Gardner, Vice Chair 
Frank Gargiulo 
Stacy Gemma 
Roberta Kenny 
Vincent Lombardo  
Jeanette Peña, Chair 
Christopher Reber, President (Ex Officio) 
Silvia Rodriguez 
Harold Stahl 

https://zoom.us/j/97566676811?pwd=bXFybEpENHdBT3N6cmVaOExxYmNpQT09


 
III. COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC      Chair Peña  
 
IV. CLOSED SESSION  (The Board of Trustees will determine whether there is a 

need to go into closed session at the beginning of the meeting. If there is such a 
determination, an announcement will be made as to where the session will be 
placed on the agenda.) 

  
V. REPORTS  
  
 1. Student Government Association President’s Report               Ms. Resurreccion 
  
 2. All College Council Chair’s Report                 Dr. Cody 
 
 3. President’s Report                   Dr. Reber 
                   
VI. REGULAR MONTHLY REPORTS AND RECOMMENDATIONS    
         

1. Minutes of Previous Meetings 
 

 2. Gifts, Grants, and Contracts 
     
VII. FISCAL, ADMINISTRATIVE, LEASE, AND CAPITAL RECOMMENDATIONS Dr. Reber 
 
VIII. PERSONNEL RECOMMENDATIONS      Dr. Reber 
 
IX. ACADEMIC AND STUDENT AFFAIRS RECOMMENDATIONS   Dr. Reber 
 
X. NEW BUSINESS        Chair Peña 
 
XI. ADJOURNMENT        Chair Peña 
 
 

 
 
  



HUDSON COUNTY COMMUNITY COLLEGE 
 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES MEETING 
 

Tuesday, November 26, 2024 
  

 
 

II. ROLL CALL 
 
Trustees: 
 
Lisa Camacho, Student Alumni Representative    PRESENT  
 
Edward DeFazio, Secretary/Treasurer     PRESENT  
 
Joseph Doria        ABSENT  
 
Pamela Gardner, Vice Chair      PRESENT  
 
Frank Gargiulo        PRESENT  
 
Stacy Gemma        PRESENT  
 
Roberta Kenny         PRESENT  
 
Vincent Lombardo       PRESENT  
 
Jeanette Peña, Chair       PRESENT  
 
Christopher Reber, President, Ex Officio     PRESENT  
 
Silvia Rodriguez        PRESENT  
 
Harold Stahl        PRESENT  
 
 
This meeting is called in conformance with the "Open Public Meetings Act."  A notice of the meeting of the 
Board of Trustees was transmitted to all Board members; advertised in The Jersey Journal and The Star 
Ledger; filed with each office of the Hudson County Municipal Clerks; posted on the College Website and on 
Public Bulletin Boards of Hudson County Community College at 70 Sip Avenue, Jersey City, New Jersey, 
and at the North Hudson Campus, Union City, New Jersey, stating the date, time and place of said meeting. 
  



MEETING INTRODUCTION 
 

 This meeting is called in conformance with the Open Public Meetings Act.  Members of the public 

will now have an opportunity to address the Board of Trustees.  Comments of each person will be limited 

to five minutes, including all responses.  A member of the public may not provide any portion of his/her 

five-minute allotment to any other member of the public.  Please be aware that the purpose of the public 

portion of the meeting is for the public to express any ideas, concerns or issues they may have 

concerning Hudson County Community College.  Questions raised to the Board during the public 

comment period may be referred to the appropriate administrative person(s) at the College for response 

at a later time. 

 Any public comments made to the Board, which the Board considers obscene, harassing, or 

meant to incite, will be prevented by the Board.  The person making these remarks may be required to 

relinquish the remaining time allotted to speak and will be asked to leave the Board of Trustees meeting.  

Public comments or questions are open to any matters over which the Board has purview and jurisdiction. 

 
  



HUDSON COUNTY COMMUNITY COLLEGE 
  

BOARD OF TRUSTEES MEETING 
 

Tuesday, November 26, 2024 
 
 
 III. COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC 
 
None 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



HUDSON COUNTY COMMUNITY COLLEGE 
  
 BOARD OF TRUSTEES MEETING 
      

Tuesday, November 26, 2024 
 
 
 IV.  CLOSED SESSION 
None 
 
 
 
 
  



HUDSON COUNTY COMMUNITY COLLEGE 
 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES MEETING 
 

Tuesday, November 26, 2024         
 
 

V.  REPORTS 
 
 

1. Student Government Association President’s Report (N. Resurreccion) 
 

2. All College Council Chair’s Report (C. Cody) 
 

3. President’s Report (C. Reber) 
 

Business Education Supplemental Training (BEST) Program Presentation 
 
Dr. Peter Cronrath, Associate Professor of Business 
 
Elena Winslow, Associate Professor of Business 
 
Anuvhuti Bisht, Student 
 
Aadil Ishtiaq, Student  
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 

   
 
 
   
 
 
    
     
 
 
 
        
  

  



HUDSON COUNTY COMMUNITY COLLEGE 
 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES MEETING 
 

Tuesday, November 26, 2024          
 
 
 VI. REGULAR MONTHLY REPORTS AND RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
 
1. MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING 
 
The Minutes of the Regular Meeting of October 8, 2024 are herewith submitted to the Board of Trustees for 
approval. (Page 10)  
 
Recommendation: 
 
It is the recommendation of the President that the Board of Trustees accept the Minutes of the Regular 
Meeting of October 8, 2024. 
 
2.         GIFTS, GRANTS, AND CONTRACTS REPORT 
  
Hudson County Community College has received the following grants: 
 
TITLE: JED Campus Collaborative for Student Parents 
 
AGENCY: The JED Foundation 
 
PURPOSE OF GRANT: The grant aims to develop mental health programming to support student 
parents. 
 
COLLEGE ADMINISTRATOR: Doreen Pontius 

COLLEGE CONTRIBUTION: $0 
  
AWARD AMOUNT: $5,000.00 
 
 
TITLE: FY2025 Hunger-Free Campus Grant 
 
AGENCY: Office of the Secretary of Higher Education (OSHE)  
 
PURPOSE OF GRANT: The funding’s purpose is to address student hunger, leverage sustainable 
solutions to address basic food needs on campus, and continue building strategic partnerships at the 
local, state, and national levels to address food insecurity among students. 
  
COLLEGE ADMINISTRATOR: Katherine Morales 

COLLEGE CONTRIBUTION: $0 
  
AWARD AMOUNT: $56,250.00 
 
 
TITLE: FY2025 Some College, No Degree (SCND)  
 



AGENCY: Office of the Secretary of Higher Education (OSHE) 
 
PURPOSE OF GRANT: These funds will enable institutions to build capacity, address institutional 
barriers to re-enrolling and completing, and foster innovative ways to serve SCND students. 
 
COLLEGE ADMINISTRATOR: Matthew Fessler and Dr. Bernadette So 
 
COLLEGE CONTRIBUTION: $0 
  
AWARD AMOUNT: $100,000.00 
 
 
RESOLUTION:  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Trustees accept Item VI., Regular Monthly 
Reports and Recommendations 1 and 2. 
 
INTRODUCED BY:    Jeanette Peña   
 
SECONDED BY:    Pamela Gardner  
 
DATE:     November 26, 2024         
 
 
DeFazio, Edward    AYE    
Doria, Joseph     ABSENT   
Gardner, Pamela     AYE   
Gargiulo, Frank     AYE   
Gemma, Stacy     AYE   
Kenny, Roberta     AYE   
Lombardo, Vincent    AYE   
Rodriguez, Silvia    AYE   
Stahl, Harold     AYE   
Peña, Jeanette, Chair    AYE   
 
 
           9        Aye     0 Nay 
 
 

***RESOLUTION ADOPTED*** 
________________________     11/26/2024   
Signature of Recorder        Date 
  



 
 



HUDSON COUNTY COMMUNITY COLLEGE 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES MEETING 
 

Tuesday, November 26, 2024          
 
 

 VII. FISCAL, ADMINISTRATIVE, LEASE, AND CAPITAL RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
1. Resolution Authorizing Technical Operations and Project Management Support Services 
 
WHEREAS, Hudson County Community College (“College”) needs technical management support 
(“Services”) for all College operations and projects; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the Services constitute an extraordinary unspecifiable service and are exempt from public 
bidding pursuant to N.J.S.A. 18A:64A-25.5 (a) (2); and, 
 
WHEREAS, notwithstanding the bid exception, the College publicly advertised a request for proposal 
(“RFP”) for the Services for a term not to exceed two (2) years; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the College received three (3) proposals in response to the advertised RFP: 
 

Vendor 
 

Location Cost 

 
MAST Construction Services, 
Inc. 

 
Little Falls, NJ 

Various rates from $185 per 
hour (starting at the Project 
Manager level) 
 

 
Neglia Group 

 
Lyndhurst, NJ 

Various rates from $190 per 
hour (starting at the Project 
Manager level) 

 
 
T and M Associates 

 
 

Bloomfield, NJ 

 
Various rates from $280 per 
hour (starting at the Project 
Manager level) 

 
WHEREAS, all proposals submitted are within the College’s budget for the Services; and, 
 
WHEREAS, after evaluating all proposals received, the College has determined that the proposal 
submitted by MAST Construction Services, Inc. (“MAST”) is in the best interests of the College, price and 
other factors considered, recognizing MAST’s prior experience with the College’s construction projects 
occurring over many years, as well as the College’s facilities and infrastructure; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the College has determined that the proposal from MAST is responsive and reasonable as to 
price; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the cost of these services will be funded from the operating budget; and,  
 
WHEREAS, the Administration, Finance Committee, and Capital Projects Advisory Committee 
recommend this award; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Trustees of Hudson County Community 
College award a contract to MAST Construction Services, Inc. of Little Falls, New Jersey, to provide 
technical operations and project management support services as described herein for a two (2) year 
term at the hourly fees set forth in MAST’s proposal. 
 



BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Board of Trustees authorize the Administration to take all steps 
necessary to effectuate the terms of this resolution. 
 
2. Resolution Approving Award of Sanitation Services 
 
WHEREAS, Hudson County Community College (“College”) needs the services of a vendor for solid 
waste disposal; and,  
 
WHEREAS, pursuant to N.J.S.A. 18A:64A-25.1, et seq., the College publicly advertised and held a public 
bid opening for Services; and 
 
WHEREAS, the College received a single bid in response to the public advertisement from Allegro 
Sanitation (“Allegro”) in the amount of $179,548 for the two (2) year term; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the cost of these services will be funded from the operating budget; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the Administration and Finance Committee recommend this award;   
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Trustees of Hudson County Community 
College award a contract to Allegro Sanitation of Secaucus, New Jersey, for solid waste disposal services 
for a two (2) year term as described herein at a total cost not to exceed $179,548. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Board of Trustees authorize the Administration to take all steps 
necessary to effectuate the terms of this resolution. 
 
3. Resolution Authorizing Contract for Technical Maintenance of Parking Stackers 
 
WHEREAS, Hudson County Community College (“College”) requires the services of an experienced 
vendor to provide technical maintenance for the parking stackers at the former 119 Enos Building site 
(“Services”); and, 
 
WHEREAS, pursuant to N.J.S.A. 18A:64A-25.5 (a) (10), contracts whose subject matter consists of 
specialized machinery or equipment of a technical nature, that will not reasonably permit the drawing of 
specifications and the procurement thereof without advertising, is in the public interest, and such 
contracts are exempt from public bidding; and, 
 
WHEREAS, Park Plus, Inc. (“Park Plus”), the proprietary vendor currently constructing the facility, has 
submitted a proposal to provide these services for a total monthly cost of $4,320; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the term for the Services is five (5) years; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the cost of the Services will be funded from the operating budget; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the Administration and Finance Committee recommend this award; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Trustees of Hudson County Community 
College award a contract for the technical maintenance of parking stackers to Park Plus, Inc., of East 
Rutherford, New Jersey, as described herein at a cost not to exceed $259,200 over five years. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Board of Trustees authorize the Administration to take all steps 
necessary to effectuate the terms of this resolution. 
 
4. Resolution Authorizing Agreement for Technology Management Services  
 
WHEREAS, Hudson County Community College (“College”) needs the services of an outside vendor to 
provide Technology Management Services (“Services”); and,  



 
WHEREAS, given the qualitative nature of the Services and the expertise required to perform them, the 
Services cannot reasonably be described through written specifications and the College has determined 
that the Services qualify as an extraordinary unspecifiable service and are exempt from public bidding; 
and,  
 
WHEREAS, notwithstanding the bid exception, the College solicited proposals through a fair-and-open 
process and issued a Request-for-Proposal (“RFP”) for the services for a term not to exceed two (2) 
years; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the College received one (1) proposal in response to the RFP: 
 

Vendor 
 

Location Cost 

Ellucian 
 

Fairfax, VA $3,103,440 

WHEREAS, the College has determined that the proposal submitted by Ellucian is in the best interests of 
the College, all factors considered, including Ellucian’s experience in the higher education sector with one 
thousand five hundred (1,500) educational entities worldwide as their enterprise resource planning 
(“ERP”) system, and Ellucian’s integration with the College for fourteen (14) years; and, 

WHEREAS, the cost of these services will be funded from the operating budget; and,  
 
WHEREAS, this represents a 28% increase per last agreement due to dedicated staffing costs, labor 
market and wage increases, enhanced service consistency, and quality and performance assurance; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the Administration and Finance Committee recommend this award;  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Trustees of Hudson County Community 
College approve the contract renewal with Ellucian of Fairfax, Virginia, by the terms as described herein 
at a cost not to exceed $3,103,440.  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Board of Trustees authorize the Administration to take all steps 
necessary to effectuate the terms of this resolution. 
 
5. Resolution Authorizing Renewal of Cloud Migration and Security Software  
 
WHEREAS, Hudson County Community College (“College’’) needs to purchase software that provides 
failover to a private cloud when necessary for disaster recovery for remote instruction and remote 
services; and,  
 
WHEREAS, pursuant to N.J.S.A. 18A:64A-25.11a, the College may award a contract without public 
advertising for bids when the purchase is made through a purchasing cooperative established through the 
State of New Jersey; and, 
 
WHEREAS, CDW Government (AEPA Vendor Agreement 022-G Technology Catalog (ESCNJ)) 
submitted a proposal for Innovative Xi Leap software, which provides the required services, at a total cost 
of $260,902 for the term of the contract, representing no subscription increase from the prior year; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the anticipated term is two (2) years; and,  
 
WHEREAS, the cost of these services will be funded from the operating budget; and,  
 
WHEREAS, the Administration and Finance Committee recommend payment of this purchase;   
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Trustees of Hudson County Community  



College award a contract to CDW Government of Vernon Hills, Illinois, for the Innovative Xi Leap software 
as described herein at a cost not to exceed $260,902.  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Board of Trustees authorize the Administration to take all steps 
necessary to effectuate the terms of this resolution. 
 
6. Resolution Authorizing Renewal of Microsoft Software License Agreement  
 
WHEREAS, Hudson County Community College (“College”) needs to renew the College campus-wide 
Microsoft Software License with the addition of Microsoft Copilot; and,  
 
WHEREAS, pursuant to N.J.S.A. 18A:64A-25.11a, the College may award a contract without public 
advertising for bids when the purchase is made through a purchasing cooperative established through the 
State of New Jersey; and, 
 
WHEREAS, SHI International Corp. (State Contract NJEdge #269EMCPS-21-001-EM-SHI) submitted a 
proposal to provide these licenses at a total cost not to exceed $88,853, which represents a 1% increase 
per license; and,  
 
WHEREAS, the anticipated term is one (1) year; and,  
 
WHEREAS, the cost of these services will be funded from the operating budget; and,  
 
WHEREAS, the Administration and Finance Committee recommend this award;  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Trustees of Hudson County Community 
College award a contract to SHI International Corp. of Somerset, New Jersey, for the renewal of the 
College campus-wide Microsoft Software License as described herein at a cost not to exceed $88,853.  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Board of Trustees authorize the Administration to take all steps 
necessary to effectuate the terms of this resolution. 
 
7. Resolution Authorizing Renewal of Smartsheet 
 
WHEREAS, Hudson County Community College ("College") needs to renew and purchase additional 
Smartsheet (“SS”) licenses; and,  
 
WHEREAS, SS is a software as a service offering for collaboration and work management used to assign 
tasks, track project progress, manage calendars, share documents, and manage other work, using a 
tabular user interface; and, 
 
WHEREAS, pursuant to N.J.S.A. 18A:64A-25.11a, the College may award a contract without public 
advertising for bids when the purchase is made through a purchasing cooperative established through the 
State of New Jersey; and, 
 
WHEREAS, SHI International Corp. (part of Edge Market – TeCHS Full Catalog/Contract # 269EMCPS- 
21-001-EM-SHI) has quoted a price for the licenses at a cost not to exceed $74,934, which represents no 
license cost increase from the prior year; and,  
 
WHEREAS, the term of the agreement is one (1) year; and,  
 
WHEREAS, the cost of these services will be funded from the operating budget; and,  
 
WHEREAS, the Administration and Finance Committee recommend this purchase;  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Trustees of Hudson County Community  



College award a contract to SHI International Corp. of Somerset, New Jersey, to provide Smartsheet 
licenses as described herein at a cost not to exceed $74,934.  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Board of Trustees authorize the Administration to take all steps 
necessary to effectuate the terms of this resolution. 
 
8. Resolution Authorizing Renewal of Staff and Faculty Monthly Parking at 511-523 52nd 
 Street, West New York, NJ, with the Town of West New York 
 
WHEREAS, Hudson County Community College (“College”) needs to provide additional parking for 
faculty and staff; and,  
 
WHEREAS, pursuant to N.J.S.A 18A:64A-12 (l), the board of trustees of a county college may acquire, 
lease and use property that is necessary for college purposes; and,  
 
WHEREAS, the Town of West New York has submitted a proposal to continue to provide fifty-five (55) 
parking spaces at 511-523 52nd Street, West New York, New Jersey, for a total cost not to exceed 
$44,000 annually, which represents the same rate and no increase from the prior agreement; and 
 
WHEREAS, the anticipated term is four (4) years; and,  
 
WHEREAS, the cost of the parking lease will be funded from the operating budget; and,  
 
WHEREAS, the Administration and Finance Committee recommend this award;  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Trustees of Hudson County Community 
College approve the lease renewal with the Town of West New York, New Jersey, at a cost not to 
exceed $44,000 annually. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Board of Trustees authorize the Administration to take all steps 
necessary to effectuate the terms of this resolution. 
 
9. Resolution Awarding Renewal of Maintenance Agreement for Sharp Multifunctional 
 Printers/Copiers  
 
WHEREAS, Hudson County Community College (“College”) needs to renew a maintenance agreement 
for thirty-four (34) Sharp multifunctional printers/copiers; and,  
 
WHEREAS, the College owns the printers/copiers and needs maintenance services only; and,  
 
WHEREAS, pursuant to N.J.S.A. 18A:64A-25.5 (a) (19), providing goods or services for the use, support 
or maintenance of proprietary computer hardware, software peripherals, and system development for the 
hardware, are exempt from bidding; and,   
 
WHEREAS, Sharp Business Systems submitted a proposal to deliver these services at a total cost of 
$80,000, which represents no increase from the prior year; and,  
 
WHEREAS, the term for these services is one (1) year; and,  
 
WHEREAS, the cost of these services will be funded from the operating budget; and,  
 
WHEREAS, the Administration and Finance Committee recommend this award;  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Trustees of Hudson County Community 
College hereby award a contract to Sharp Business Systems of Montvale, New Jersey, to provide the 
maintenance services as described herein at a total cost of $80,000.  



 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Board of Trustees authorize the Administration to take all steps 
necessary to effectuate the terms of this resolution. 
 
10. Resolution Authorizing Renewal of Association of College and University Educators 
 (ACUE) Partnership  
 
WHEREAS, Hudson County Community (“College”) needs to renew its partnership with the Association of 
College and University Educators (“ACUE”) to include the addition of five hundred (500) licenses for 
ACUE’s Commons program; and,  
 
WHEREAS, the ACUE will provide educational software and related services for student success through 
scalable programs of faculty development and credentialing; and, 
 
WHEREAS, pursuant to N.J.S.A. 18A:64A-25.5 (6), textbooks, copyrighted materials, student produced 
publications and services incidental thereto are exempt from bidding; and,  
 
WHEREAS, ACUE submitted a proposal for the software and services at a total cost not to exceed 
$55,000, which represents a 10% increase from the prior year due to additional services; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the anticipated term is one (1) year; and,  
 
WHEREAS, the cost of these services will be funded from the operating budget; and,  
 
WHEREAS, the Administration and Finance Committee recommend this award;  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Trustees of Hudson County Community 
College award a contract to the Association of College and University Educators of New York, New York, 
for educational software and related services as described herein at a cost not to exceed $55,000.  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Board of Trustees authorize the Administration to take all steps 
necessary to effectuate the terms of this resolution. 
 
11. Resolution Authorizing Sponsorship of Annual Foundation Dinner 
 
WHEREAS, the Hudson County Community College Foundation Board of Directors (“FBD”) has asked 
Hudson County Community College (“College”) to sponsor the Annual College Foundation Dinner 
(“Dinner”) to be held on the premises of the Culinary Conference Center on December 5, 2024; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the total cost of the sponsorship will not exceed $26,000; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the cost of the sponsorship will be funded from the operating budget; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the Administration and Finance Committee recommend this sponsorship; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Trustees of Hudson County Community 
College approve the College’s sponsorship of the annual College Foundation Dinner at the Culinary 
Conference Center at a cost not to exceed $26,000. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Board of Trustees authorize the Administration to take all steps 
necessary to effectuate the terms of this resolution. 
 
12. Resolution Authorizing Approval of the 2024 Audit  
 
WHEREAS, Hudson County Community College (“College”) had an audit conducted by Donohue, 
Gironda & Doria (“DGD”) for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2024; and, 



 
WHEREAS, a copy of the Audit (Attachment II) prepared by DGD was reviewed by the Finance 
Committee and Administration, and a copy was forwarded to the Board of Trustees; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the Administration and Finance Committee recommend the acceptance of the Fiscal Year 
2024 Audit; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Trustees of Hudson County Community 
College accept the Fiscal Year 2024 Audit performed by Donahue, Gironda & Doria of Bayonne, New 
Jersey. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Board of Trustees authorize the Administration to take all steps 
necessary to effectuate the terms of this resolution. 
 
13. Resolution Authorizing Renewal of Bloomberg Terminal Software to be Funded by the Carl 
 D. Perkins Grant 
 
WHEREAS, Hudson County Community College ("College”) needs to renew the proprietary Bloomberg 
Terminal Software for the business labs at the Journal Square Campus; and, 
 
WHEREAS, pursuant to N.J.S.A.18A:64A-25.5 (a) (3), materials or supplies that are not available from 
more than one potential bidder, including, without limitation, materials or supplies that are copyrighted, 
are exempt from bidding; and, 
 
WHEREAS, Bloomberg Finance L.P. submitted a proposal for the software renewal at a total cost of 
$108,308, which represents no increase from the prior agreement; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the term of the agreement is one (1) year; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the cost of the software will be funded through the Carl D. Perkins Grant; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the Administration and Finance Committee recommend this award; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Trustees of Hudson County Community 
College approve the software renewal with Bloomberg Finance L.P. of New York, New York as described 
herein at a cost not to exceed $108,308. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Board of Trustees authorize the Administration to take such other 
and further steps necessary to effectuate the purposes of this resolution. 
 
14. Resolution Authorizing Renewal of Review and Testing Course for Registered Nursing 
 Program to be Funded by the Carl D. Perkins Grant  
 
WHEREAS, Hudson County Community College (“College”) offers an undergraduate program for 
students pursuing a Registered Nursing Degree (“Program”); and,  
 
WHEREAS, Kaplan Test Prep, a division of Kaplan, Inc. (“Kaplan”), has developed proprietary materials, 
including the NCLEX-RN Review Course (“Review Course”), to test students’ knowledge and help 
students prepare for the Registered Nursing exam; and,  
 
WHEREAS, pursuant to N.J.S.A. 18A:64A-25.5 (a) (3), the College may, without public advertising for 
bids or bidding therefore, make, negotiate or award a contract for materials or supplies that are not 
available from more than one potential bidder, including without limitation materials or supplies that are 
copyrighted; and,  
 



WHEREAS, the College has determined it is in the best interests of the Program to enter into a contract 
with Kaplan so that the Program’s students will have access to the Review Course including support and 
maintenance from Kaplan; and,  
 
WHEREAS, Kaplan submitted a proposal to provide materials at a cost not to exceed $180 per academic 
term per student, which represents no increase from the prior year; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the cost of these services will be funded from the Carl D. Perkins Grant; and,  
 
WHEREAS, the Administration and Finance Committee recommend this award;  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Trustees of Hudson County Community 
College award a contract to Kaplan, Inc. of Fort Lauderdale, Florida, for the Review Course for the fees 
set forth above. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Board of Trustees authorize the Administration to take all steps 
necessary to effectuate the terms of this resolution. 
 
15. Resolution Rejecting Proposal for Latino Outreach Services 
 
WHEREAS, on November 7, 2024, Hudson County Community College (“College”) held a public bid 
opening for a contract for Marketing, Advertising and Community Relations for Latino Outreach 
(“Services”); and, 
 
WHEREAS, the College received a single bid, from Impact Consulting Enterprises LLC (“ICE”); and, 
 
WHEREAS, ICE’s bid substantially exceeded the price that the College deems reasonable; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the Administration recommends rejecting ICE’s bid; and, 
 
WHEREAS, N.J.S.A. 18A:64A-25.15 permits a County College to reject all bids; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Trustees of Hudson County Community 
College hereby reject the bid received for the Services for the reasons set forth herein; 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Administration is authorized to rebid the Services. 
 
 
RESOLUTION: 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Trustees approve the recommendations of the 
President, Administration, and Finance Committee as outlined above in Item VII., Fiscal, Administrative, 
Lease and Capital Recommendation 1-15. 
 
1) Resolution Authorizing Technical Operations and Project Management Support Services; 2) Resolution 
Approving Award of Sanitation Services; 3) Resolution Authorizing Contract for Technical Maintenance of 
Parking Stackers; 4) Resolution Authorizing Agreement for Technology Management Services; 5) 
Resolution Authorizing Renewal of Cloud Migration and Security Software; 6) Resolution Authorizing 
Renewal of Microsoft Software License Agreement; 7) Resolution Authorizing Renewal of Smartsheet; 8) 
Resolution Authorizing Renewal of Staff and Faculty Monthly Parking at 511-523 52nd Street, West New 
York, NJ, with the Town of West New York; 9) Resolution Awarding Renewal of Maintenance Agreement 
for Sharp Multifunctional Printers/Copiers; 10) Resolution Authorizing Renewal of Association of College 
and University Educators (ACUE) Partnership; 11)Resolution Authorizing Sponsorship of Annual 
Foundation Dinner; 12) Resolution Authorizing Approval of the 2024 Audit; 13) Resolution Authorizing 
Renewal of Bloomberg Terminal Software to be Funded by the Carl D. Perkins Grant; 14) Resolution 



Authorizing Renewal of Review and Testing Course for Registered Nursing Program to be Funded by the 
Carl D. Perkins Grant; and 15) Resolution Rejecting Proposal for Latino Outreach Services. 
 
INTRODUCED BY:    Pamela Gardner  
 
SECONDED BY:    Edward DeFazio  
 
DATE:     November 26, 2024         
 
 
DeFazio, Edward    AYE    
Doria, Joseph     ABSENT   
Gardner, Pamela     AYE   
Gargiulo, Frank     AYE   
Gemma, Stacy     AYE   
Kenny, Roberta     AYE   
Lombardo, Vincent    AYE   
Rodriguez, Silvia    AYE   
Stahl, Harold     AYE   
Peña, Jeanette, Chair    AYE   
 
 
           9        Aye     0 Nay 
 
 

***RESOLUTION ADOPTED*** 
________________________     11/26/2024   
Signature of Recorder        Date 
  



 

Supporting Document 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Click Here for Supporting Document 
 
 
 
  

https://www.hccc.edu/abouthccc/resources/documents/annual-audit-report-2024.pdf


HUDSON COUNTY COMMUNITY COLLEGE 
 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES MEETING 
 

Tuesday, November 26, 2024 
 

VIII. PERSONNEL RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
1. SEPARATION 
 

First Name Last Name Title Effective Date 

Jamilah Moudiab 
Director of Veterans Affairs and International Student 
Services  October 22, 2024 

 
RECOMMENDATION: The President, Administration, and Personnel Committee recommend that 

the Board of Trustees approve the Separation above as Personnel 
Recommendation Item No. 1. 
 

2. RESIGNATIONS 
 

First Name Last Name Title Effective Date 

Brianna  Casagrande  
Senior Assistant Director, North Hudson Operations and 
Development, Advisement  December 31, 2024 

Paula  
JnoVille 
Roney Administrative Assistant, Registrar  November 30, 2024 

Shamina  Scriven  Academic Counselor  October 30, 2024 

Meghry  Tutunjian  
Academic Counselor, Early College Programs and 
Secaucus Center  November 1, 2024 

 
RECOMMENDATION: The President, Administration, and Personnel Committee recommend that 

the Board of Trustees approve the Resignations above as Personnel 
Recommendation Item No. 2. 
 

3. APPOINTMENT OF FULL-TIME STAFF 
 

First Name Last Name Title Effective Date Annual  
Salary 

Katy-Ann  Blacker Assistant Director of Institutional Research  December 1, 2024 
                                         
$ 75,000.00  

Brianna  Casagrande  
Associate Director, Career and Transfer 
Pathways  January 1, 2025 

                                             
$ 67,401.99  

Sri Vidya Chikodi Data and Reporting Coordinator December 12, 2024 $ 60,400.00 

Ana  Hernandez  Support Analyst December 2, 2024 
                                                
$ 54,791.06 

Paula  
JnoVille 
Roney Counselor, Educational Opportunity Fund  December 1, 2024 

                                                   
$ 60,407.15  

Rossella Lopez Admissions Advisor November 27, 2024 $ 48,619.02 
Stephanie Zhou Support Analyst December 2, 2024 $ 50,113.78 

 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
 
 

 
The President, Administration, and Personnel Committee recommend that the 
Board of Trustees approve the Appointment of Full-time Staff above as 
Personnel Recommendation Item No. 3. 
 

4. APPOINTMENT OF TEMPORARY FULL-TIME STAFF 
 



First Name Last Name Title 
Salary 
Grade 

Effective 
Date 

Anticipated 
End Date 

Annual  
Salary 

Mariam  Amer  Academic Counselor  113 
November 27, 
2024 

March 31, 
2025 $ 58,000.00 

Faizan Aslam 
Administrative 
Assistant, Registrar 108 

December 3, 
2024 June 30, 2025 $ 44,955.17 

Luisa  Carranza  
Administrative Support 
Specialist  105 

November 27, 
2024 June 30, 2025 $ 40,800.00 

Kandi Ceballos 
Human Resources 
Coordinator 109 

November 11, 
2024 

January 3, 
2025 $47,202.93 

Perla  
De Aza 
Paniagua  Academic Advisor  109 

November 27, 
2024 

March 31, 
2025 $ 47,202.93 

Andres  Estrella  Accounting Manager  117 
December 2, 
2024 

January 31, 
2025 $ 90,000.00 

Rebekah Isaac 
Human Resources 
Coordinator 108 

November 11, 
2024 

December 6, 
2024 $44,955.17 

Machli Joseph 
Assistant Director 
(Partially Grant-funded) 113 

January 1, 
2025 

September 
30, 2027 $ 65,000.00 

Jasmine Pascua 
Equipment Manager 
(Grant-Funded)  

November 27, 
2024 June 30, 2025 $45,000 

Manuel Preciado Financial Aid Advisor  109 
November 27, 
2024 May 26, 2025 $ 51,064.87 

Samantha Ramirez Academic Advisor   109 
November 27, 
2024 

March 31, 
2025 $ 48,693.00 

 
RECOMMENDATION: 

 
The President, Administration, and Personnel Committee recommend that 
the Board of Trustees approve the Appointment of Temporary Full-time 
Staff above as Personnel Recommendation Item No. 4. 

 

 
5. APPOINTMENT OF TEMPORARY FULL-TIME FACULTY 
 

First Name Last Name Title Effective Date Anticipated 
End Date 

Annual  
Salary 

Robert  Maurer 
Instructor, Culinary  
(Non-tenure Track)  January 24, 2025 May 31, 2025 $57,097.96 

Khursheed  Khan  

Instructor, Construction 
Management (Non-tenure 
Track)  January 24, 2025 May 31, 2025 $56,320.00 

 
RECOMMENDATION: The President, Administration, and Personnel Committee recommend 

that the Board of Trustees approve the Appointment of Temporary Full-
time Faculty above as Personnel Recommendation Item No. 5. 

 
6. AUTHORIZATION OF PART-TIME STAFF THROUGH NOVEMBER 2025, AS NEEDED 

 

First name Last name Office Title Position ID Supervisor 

Marystella Ahmed 

ADJ Academic 
Support Services 
Department Tutor TUTOR-252010 Kenny Fabara 



Lisa Bellan-Boyer 

ADJ Academic 
Support Services 
Department Tutor TUTOR-252010 Kenny Fabara 

Phill Carrillo 

ADJ Academic 
Support Services 
Department Tutor TUTOR-252010 Kenny Fabara 

Rose Dalton 

ADJ Academic 
Support Services 
Department 

Head Academic 
Mentor MENTOR-252010 Kenny Fabara 

Anthony Davenport 

ADJ Academic 
Support Services 
Department Tutor TUTOR-252010 Kenny Fabara 

Natasha Digenio 

ADJ Academic 
Support Services 
Department Tutor TUTOR-252010 Kenny Fabara 

Dalila Djerroud 

ADJ Academic 
Support Services 
Department Tutor TUTOR-252010 Kenny Fabara 

Tahar Dob 

ADJ Academic 
Support Services 
Department Tutor TUTOR-252010 Kenny Fabara 

Ernesto Grassi 

ADJ Academic 
Support Services 
Department Tutor TUTOR-252010 Kenny Fabara 

Rose Grimaldi 

ADJ Academic 
Support Services 
Department Tutor TUTOR-252010 Kenny Fabara 

Madelyn Hoffman 

ADJ Academic 
Support Services 
Department Tutor TUTOR-252010 Kenny Fabara 

Athar Javaid 

ADJ Academic 
Support Services 
Department Tutor TUTOR-252010 Kenny Fabara 

Hadeeqa Khalid 

ADJ Academic 
Support Services 
Department Tutor TUTOR-252010 Kenny Fabara 

Michael Lago 

ADJ Academic 
Support Services 
Department Tutor TUTOR-252010 Kenny Fabara 

Gabriel Manaois 

ADJ Academic 
Support Services 
Department Office Assistant OFFAST-252010 Kenny Fabara 



Mark McCarthy 

ADJ Academic 
Support Services 
Department Tutor TUTOR-252010 Kenny Fabara 

Olivia Na 

ADJ Academic 
Support Services 
Department Tutor TUTOR-252010 Kenny Fabara 

Rafael Osorio 

ADJ Academic 
Support Services 
Department Tutor TUTOR-252010 Kenny Fabara 

Dimarie Pagan 

ADJ Academic 
Support Services 
Department Tutor TUTOR-252010 Kenny Fabara 

Saedel Pensoy 

ADJ Academic 
Support Services 
Department Tutor TUTOR-252010 Kenny Fabara 

Laura Robertson 

ADJ Academic 
Support Services 
Department 

Teaching 
Assistant  

TEACHING 
ASSISTANT-
252010 Kenny Fabara 

Heba Salem 

ADJ Academic 
Support Services 
Department Office Assistant OFFAST-252010 Kenny Fabara 

Maria Soliman 

ADJ Academic 
Support Services 
Department Tutor TUTOR-252010 Kenny Fabara 

Selena Suarez 

ADJ Academic 
Support Services 
Department Tutor TUTOR-252010 Kenny Fabara 

Sandra Valanzola 

ADJ Academic 
Support Services 
Department Tutor TUTOR-252010 Kenny Fabara 

Marolla Youakim 

ADJ Academic 
Support Services 
Department Tutor TUTOR-252010 Kenny Fabara 

Darius  Gilmore  Advancement  Office Assistant  PTOFAST-255010 Nicole Johnson  

Andrea  Siegel  Advancement  Art Coordinator  PTACORD-255010 Nicole Johnson  

Ghaida Abdoalmogni Advisement  Office Assistant OFFAST-200510 Andy Adler 

William Bird Advisement  
Academic 
Advisor ADVISOR-200510 Marselly Almanzar 



Chrissto Canales Advisement  
Academic 
Advisor ADVISOR-200510 Andy Adler 

Lewis Livesay Advisement  
Academic 
Advisor ADVISOR-200510 Marselly Almanzar 

Yesenia Lopez Advisement Advisor ADVISOR-200510 Andy Adler 

Nisrine Mraihy Advisement  Office Assistant OFFAST-200510 Brianna Casagrande 

Carlos Ortiz Advisement Advisor ADVISOR-200510 Andy Adler 

Kamelyn Santos Advisement  Office Assistant OFFAST-200510 Andy Adler 

Samantha Alvarez College Libraries 
Library 
Associate PTLRASO-150510 Lisa Bogart 

Ely Amaya College Libraries 
Library 
Associate PTLRASO-150510 Lisa Bogart 

Jaden Antonacci College Libraries 
Library 
Associate PTLRASO-150510 Saudia Reid 

Susannah Aziz College Libraries Librarian PTLRN-150510 Lisa Bogart 

Nischal Bisht College Libraries 

Library 
Associate, 
Technology PTLRTEC-150510 Jing Yang 

Nesma Eladawi College Libraries 

Library 
Associate, 
Technology PTLRTEC-150510 Jing Yang 

Sohir Elgebily College Libraries 
Library 
Associate PTTECHS-150510 Mary Ellen Piel 

Justin Epps College Libraries 
Library 
Associate PTLRASO-150510 Saudia Reid 

Elliot Erhunmwuosere College Libraries 

Library 
Associate, 
Technology PTLRTEC-150510 Jing Yang 



Melissa Franco College Libraries 
Library 
Associate PTLRASO-150510 Lisa Bogart 

Marjorie Lora De La Rosa College Libraries 
Library 
Associate PTLRASO-150510 Saudia Reid 

Mike Luna Mendez College Libraries 
Library 
Associate PTLRASO-150510 Lisa Bogart 

Douglas Mckeon College Libraries Librarian PTLRN-150510 Brooke Duffy 

Jeanette Nelson College Libraries 
Library 
Associate PTTECHS-150510 Mary Ellen Piel 

Hussein Odeh College Libraries Librarian PTLRN-150510 Brooke Duffy 

Wesley Pena College Libraries 

Library 
Associate, 
Technology PTLRTEC-150510 Lisa Bogart 

Robert Richard College Libraries 

Library 
Associate, 
Technology PTLRTEC-150510 Jing Yang 

Ashley Rinaldi College Libraries 
Library 
Associate PTLRASO-150510 Saudia Reid 

Kimberly Romulus College Libraries 
Library 
Associate PTLRASO-150510 Saudia Reid 

Angelita Tubungbanua College Libraries 
Library 
Associate PTLRASO-150510 Saudia Reid 

Alexander Zarate College Libraries 
Library 
Associate PTLRASO-150510 Saudia Reid 

Anne Hutchinson College Libraries  Librarian PTLRN-150510 Brooke Duffy 

Priyanka  Mistry  Communications  Office Assistant  OFFAST-254055 Jennifer Christopher  

Julieta  Veiga Da Souza  Communications  Office Assistant  OFFAST-254055 Jennifer Christopher  



Marwa Abdelaziz 

Continuing 
Education and 
Workforce 
Development PT Instructor 

PTINST-102010; 
PTINST-103005 

Chastity Farrell; 
Machli Joseph 

Andy Abraham 

Continuing 
Education and 
Workforce 
Development 

PT Healthcare 
Instructor 

HCINST-103005; 
HCINST-605020 

Samaya Yashayeva; 
Anita Belle 

Arefa Ali 

Continuing 
Education and 
Workforce 
Development 

PT Customer 
Service 
Assistant CSTAST-103005 Lori Margolin 

Emmanuel Ankrah 

Continuing 
Education and 
Workforce 
Development PT Instructor PTINST-102010 Chastity Farrell 

Emily Arowosaye 

Continuing 
Education and 
Workforce 
Development 

PT Healthcare 
Instructor HCINST-103005 Samaya Yashayeva 

Hussein Bakheet 

Continuing 
Education and 
Workforce 
Development PT Administrator EWKADM-252010 Alexis Muniz 

Monteria Bass 

Continuing 
Education and 
Workforce 
Development PT Administrator EWKADM-252010 Alexis Muniz 

Nicole Behman 

Continuing 
Education and 
Workforce 
Development PT Instructor PTINST-102010 Chastity Farrell 

Alison Blumenfeld 

Continuing 
Education and 
Workforce 
Development 

PT Healthcare 
Instructor HCINST-103005 Samaya Yashayeva 

Sophia Brooks 

Continuing 
Education and 
Workforce 
Development PT Instructor PTINST-102010 Chastity Farrell 



Anthony Campo 

Continuing 
Education and 
Workforce 
Development PT Instructor PTINST-103005 Anita Belle 

Aya Daoud 

Continuing 
Education and 
Workforce 
Development PT Instructor PTINST-102010 Chastity Farrell 

Omnia Daoud 

Continuing 
Education and 
Workforce 
Development PT Instructor PTINST-102010 Chastity Farrell 

Cherise Dawson 

Continuing 
Education and 
Workforce 
Development 

PT Healthcare 
Instructor HCINST-103005 Samaya Yashayeva 

Cherise Dawson 

Continuing 
Education and 
Workforce 
Development PT Instructor PTINST-102010 Chastity Farrell 

Belen Deri 

Continuing 
Education and 
Workforce 
Development PT Instructor PTINST-102010 Chastity Farrell 

Alaina Desjardin 

Continuing 
Education and 
Workforce 
Development PT Instructor PTINST-102010 Chastity Farrell 

Abdoulaye Diallo 

Continuing 
Education and 
Workforce 
Development PT Instructor PTINST-102010 Chastity Farrell 

Edna Fameux 

Continuing 
Education and 
Workforce 
Development PT Instructor PTINST-103005 Samaya Yashayeva 

Beverly Figueroa 

Continuing 
Education and 
Workforce 
Development PT Instructor PTINST-102010 Chastity Farrell 



Arlene Ganess 

Continuing 
Education and 
Workforce 
Development PT Instructor PTINST-102010 Chastity Farrell 

Patricia Gonzalez Feliz 

Continuing 
Education and 
Workforce 
Development 

PT Healthcare 
Instructor HCINST-103005 Samaya Yashayeva 

Mohamed Helmy 

Continuing 
Education and 
Workforce 
Development PT Administrator EWKADM-252010 Alexis Muniz 

Carmen J. Hernandez 

Continuing 
Education and 
Workforce 
Development 

PT Healthcare 
Instructor HCINST-103005 Samaya Yashayeva 

Ronald Hewitt 

Continuing 
Education and 
Workforce 
Development PT Instructor PTINST-102010 Chastity Farrell 

Sheila James 

Continuing 
Education and 
Workforce 
Development PT Administrator EWKADM-252010 Alexis Muniz 

Hydah Kilonzo 

Continuing 
Education and 
Workforce 
Development 

PT Healthcare 
Instructor HCINST-103005 Samaya Yashayeva 

Angela Lenzi 

Continuing 
Education and 
Workforce 
Development PT Instructor PTINST-102010 Chastity Farrell 

Johnstone Libutsi 

Continuing 
Education and 
Workforce 
Development 

PT Healthcare 
Instructor 

HCINST-103005; 
PTINST-102010 

Samaya Yashayeva; 
Chastity Farrell 

Lilian Martinez 

Continuing 
Education and 
Workforce 
Development PT Coordinator PTCORD-103005 Samaya Yashayeva 



Joaquin Melara 

Continuing 
Education and 
Workforce 
Development PT Instructor PTINST-103005 Dan Brookes 

Melissa Molinero 

Continuing 
Education and 
Workforce 
Development 

PT Healthcare 
Instructor 

HCINST-103005; 
PTINST-103005 

Samaya Yashayeva; 
Machli Joseph 

Jose Montalvo 

Continuing 
Education and 
Workforce 
Development 

PT Healthcare 
Instructor HCINST-103005 Samaya Yashayeva 

Cynthia Morrison 

Continuing 
Education and 
Workforce 
Development 

PT Healthcare 
Instructor HCINST-103005 Samaya Yashayeva 

Mandanna Naleyanda 

Continuing 
Education and 
Workforce 
Development 

PT Healthcare 
Instructor HCINST-103005 Samaya Yashayeva 

Abiodun Oladeji 

Continuing 
Education and 
Workforce 
Development 

PT Healthcare 
Instructor HCINST-103005 Samaya Yashayeva 

Qamar Raza 

Continuing 
Education and 
Workforce 
Development PT Instructor PTINST-102010 Chastity Farrell 

Indra Sanders 

Continuing 
Education and 
Workforce 
Development PT Administrator EWKADM-252010 Alexis Muniz 

Hyun Joon 
William Shin 

Continuing 
Education and 
Workforce 
Development PT Instructor PTINST-102010 Chastity Farrell 

Gregory Simon 

Continuing 
Education and 
Workforce 
Development PT Instructor PTINST-103005 Machli Joseph 



Angelo Soto 

Continuing 
Education and 
Workforce 
Development 

PT Healthcare 
Instructor HCINST-103005 Samaya Yashayeva 

Djadji Sylla-Samassa 

Continuing 
Education and 
Workforce 
Development PT Instructor PTINST-102010 Chastity Farrell 

Marjorie Taylor 

Continuing 
Education and 
Workforce 
Development PT Instructor PTINST-102010 Chastity Farrell 

George Testa 

Continuing 
Education and 
Workforce 
Development PT Administrator EWKADM-252010 Alexis Muniz 

Cynthia Wilson 

Continuing 
Education and 
Workforce 
Development PT Instructor PTINST-103005 Machli Joseph 

Hany Zaky 

Continuing 
Education and 
Workforce 
Development PT Instructor PTINST-102010 Chastity Farrell 

Maria Zaman 

Continuing 
Education and 
Workforce 
Development PT Instructor PTINST-103005 Machli Joseph 

Gabriele Rosado 

Diversity, Equity and 
Inclusion/ 
Accessibility 
Services 

Note 
taker/Reader Reader-150525 Karine Davis 

Jacqueline  Garcia  
Early College 
Program  Office Assistant  PTOFCAS-150540 Cristhian Altamirano  

Luis Diaz Jr 

Educational 
Opportunity Fund 
(EOF) 

PT EOF Office 
Assistant 

PTEOFOFFASST-
150515 Jose M. Lowe 

Natassja Freeman 

Educational 
Opportunity Fund 
(EOF) PT EOF TUTOR 

PTEOFTUT-
150515 Jose M. Lowe 

Luisa Gomes English and ESL Office Assistant 
OFFAST-  
101040 Christopher Rivera 



Diego Gonzalez English and ESL Office Assistant  OFFAST-101040 Christopher Rivera 

Hannah Allen Enrollment Services 

Enrollment 
Support 
Assistant OFFASST-200525 Wajia Zahur 

Kadiatou Camara Enrollment Services 

Enrollment 
Support 
Assistant OFFASST-200525 Wajia Zahur 

Richard Charles Enrollment Services 

Enrollment 
Support 
Assistant OFFASST-200525 Wajia Zahur 

Najwa Essaki Enrollment Services 

Enrollment 
Support 
Assistant OFFASST-200525 Wajia Zahur 

Alisha Lambert Enrollment Services 

Enrollment 
Support 
Assistant OFFASST-200525 Wajia Zahur 

Betsaida Rosario Enrollment Services 

Enrollment 
Support 
Assistant OFFASST-200525 Wajia Zahur 

Luisa Carranza ESL 
Office Assistant, 
ESL  OFFAST-101035 Christopher Rivera 

Wagida Abdelhalim ESL  
ESL Academic 
Coach ACDCOH-601011 Alison Wakefield 

Khulud Adem ESL  
ESL Academic 
Coach ACDCOH-601011 Alison Wakefield 

Claudine Boros ESL  
ESL Academic 
Coach ACDCOH-601011 Alison Wakefield 

Erick Gamero ESL  
ESL Academic 
Coach ACDCOH-601011 Alison Wakefield 

Darius Gilmore ESL  
ESL Academic 
Coach ACDCOH-601011 Alison Wakefield 

Radia Kassa ESL  
ESL Academic 
Coach ACDCOH-601011 Alison Wakefield 

Montaha Osman ESL  
ESL Academic 
Coach ACDCOH-601011 Alison Wakefield 

Angel Ramos ESL  
ESL Academic 
Coach ACDCOH-601011 Alison Wakefield 

Ciro Romero ESL  
ESL Academic 
Coach ACDCOH-601011 Alison Wakefield 

Mariam Zoair ESL  
ESL Academic 
Coach ACDCOH-601011 Alison Wakefield 



Michelle Cruz  Finance  
Payroll Office 
Assistant  OFFAST-253015 Zuany Chicas 

Kinza  Naveed  Finance  
Payroll Office 
Assistant  OFFAST-253015 Zuany Chicas 

Jennifer  Ramirez  Finance  

Accounts 
Receivable/Burs
ar Clerk PTACBUR-253015  Leslie Lang  

Aubrey  West  Finance  

Accounts 
Payable 
Assistant  PTAPAS-253015 Quintessence Jones  

Natalie  Mejia  Financial Aid  Office Assistant  OFFAST-200520 Sylvia Mendoza  

Jada  Woods  
Hudson Helps 
Resource Center  

Food Pantry 
Manager  PTRYMGR-603055 Ariana Calle 

Carmen  McGuire  Human Resources  
HR Benefits 
Consultant  PTHRBC-253020 Josianne Payoute 

Megha  Sanghavi Human Resources  Office Assistant  OFFAST-253020 Suhani Aggarwal  

Anthony  Jenkins  
Humanities and 
Social Sciences  

Test Course 
Instructor WPCINS-601021 Alison Wakefield 

Abanob Basta 

Information 
Technology 
Services 

Instructional Lab 
Assistant POSNID 253025 Diana Perez 

Mariam Basta 

Information 
Technology 
Services 

Instructional Lab 
Assistant POSNID 253025 Diana Perez 

Shivam Chauhan 

Information 
Technology 
Services 

Instructional Lab 
Assistant POSNID 253025 Diana Perez 

Rahul Chawaria 

Information 
Technology 
Services 

Instructional Lab 
Assistant POSNID 253025 Diana Perez 

Hardik Darji 

Information 
Technology 
Services 

Instructional Lab 
Assistant POSNID 253025 Diana Perez 

Darshika Patel 

Information 
Technology 
Services 

Instructional Lab 
Assistant POSNID 253025 Diana Perez 

Dev Patel 

Information 
Technology 
Services 

Instructional Lab 
Assistant POSNID 253025 Diana Perez 



Jeet Patel 

Information 
Technology 
Services 

PT Network 
Technician PTNWTCH-253025 Hardik Sanghavi 

Kevin Patel 

Information 
Technology 
Services 

Instructional Lab 
Assistant POSNID 253025 Diana Perez 

Dhruv Patel 

Information 
Technology 
Services 

Instructional Lab 
Assistant POSNID 253025 Diana Perez 

Dylan  Valencia  

Information 
Technology 
Services 

Instructional Lab 
Assistant ISTLAB-253025  Diana Perez 

Reina Vinas 
Nursing and Health 
Professions  Skills Lab Tutor TUTOR-101017 Lori Byrd  

Darshaine  Ramdat  Radiography  Office Assistant  OFFAST-101018 Cheryl Cashell  

Anuchit Pukdeedamrongrit 

School of Business, 
Culinary Arts, and 
Hospitality 
Management 

PT Additional 
Assignment, 
Adjunct PTAACAI-101030 Ara Karakashian 

Rafaella Rodriguez 

School of Business, 
Culinary Arts, and 
Hospitality 
Management 

PT Additional 
Assignment Assistant-101030 Ara Karakashian 

Tonja Webb 

School of Business, 
Culinary Arts, and 
Hospitality 
Management 

PT Additional 
Assignment, 
Adjunct PTAACAI-101030 Ara Karakashian 

Sebastian Suazo 
School of Human 
and Social Sciences  Office Assistant OFFAST-101020 Betzabe Reyes 

Brian Sloan 

School of 
Humanities and 
Social Sciences PT Figure Model 

Part-Time Figure 
Model Eric Lee 

Natalie Betancourt 
Student Life and 
Leadership Events Assistant PTEVAST-701000 Veronica Gerosimo 

 
RECOMMENDATION: 

 



The President, Administration, and Personnel Committee recommend 
that the Board of Trustees approve the Authorization of Part-time Staff, 
as needed, as Personnel Recommendation Item No. 6. 

 
7. APPOINTMENT OF NEW HIRE ADJUNCT INSTRUCTORS  
 

First Name Last Name School/Office 
Brianna Abreau Humanities and Social Sciences  
Noreen Bi Nursing and Health Professions  
Jasmine  Black-Daniels  Nursing and Health Professions  
Jennifer Germinario Nursing and Health Professions  
Colin Ibrahim Science, Technology, Engineering, and 

Mathematics (STEM) 
Nermin Ibrahim Science, Technology, Engineering, and 

Mathematics (STEM) 
K Wei-Hsin Jacobson Humanities and Social Sciences  
Claude Lewis Business, Culinary Arts, and Hospitality 

Management 
Hany Samuel Malek Science, Technology, Engineering, and 

Mathematics (STEM) 
Emmalee Mills Humanities and Social Sciences  
Wasif Mirza Science, Technology, Engineering, and 

Mathematics (STEM) 
Shannon Pridgen Business, Culinary Arts, and Hospitality 

Management 
Alam Shamsul Science, Technology, Engineering, and 

Mathematics (STEM) 
Christine Wacta Science, Technology, Engineering, and 

Mathematics (STEM) 
 
RECOMMENDATION: The President, Administration, and Personnel Committee recommend 

that the Board of Trustees approve the Appointment of New Hire Adjunct 
Instructors listed above as Personnel Recommendation Item No 7. 
 

8. MODIFICATIONS TO STAFFING TABLE 
  

Current 
Approved Title 

New 
Title/Classification Incumbent  

Current 
Salary 
Grade 

New 
Salary 
Grade 

Current 
Salary New Salary  

Effective 
Date 

Maintenance 
Manager N/A 

Julio 
Maldonado 113 N/A $90,473.45  $95,623.00 

December 
1, 2024 

Admissions 
Advisor  

Assistant Director, 
Enrollment Services 
(One Stop Student 
Services Center) 

Hamza 
Saleem 109 113 $48,903.88  $60,864.71 

December 
1, 2024 

Accountant  Accounting Manager  N/A 113 117 N/A N/A 
November 
27, 2024 

N/A 

Director, Perkins, 
Career and Technical 
Education  N/A N/A 117 N/A N/A 

November 
27, 2024 

N/A 

Director, One Stop 
Student Services 
Center N/A  119 N/A/ N/A 

November 
27, 2024 



N/A 

Visual Art and Design 
Equipment and Lab 
Manager N/A N/A 116 N/A N/A 

November 
27, 2024 

 
RECOMMENDATION: The President, Administration, and Personnel Committee recommend 

that the Board of Trustees approve the Staffing Table Modifications 
listed above as Personnel Recommendation Item No. 8. 
 

 
RESOLUTION: 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Trustees approve the recommendations of the 
President, Administration, and Personnel Committee as outlined above in Item VIII., Personnel 
Recommendations 1-8. 
 
1) Separation; 2) Resignations; 3) Appointment of Full-time Staff; 4) Appointment of Temporary Full-time 
Staff; 5) Appointment of Temporary Full-time Faculty; 6) Authorization of Part-time Staff, as Needed; 7) 
Appointment of New Hire Adjunct Instructors; and 8) Modifications to Staffing Table. 
 
 
INTRODUCED BY:    Harold Stahl   
   
SECONDED BY:    Pamela Gardner   
  
DATE:     November 26, 2024     
 
 
DeFazio, Edward    AYE    
Doria, Joseph     ABSENT   
Gardner, Pamela     AYE   
Gargiulo, Frank     AYE   
Gemma, Stacy     AYE   
Kenny, Roberta     AYE   
Lombardo, Vincent    AYE   
Rodriguez, Silvia    AYE   
Stahl, Harold     AYE   
Peña, Jeanette, Chair    AYE   
 
 
           9        Aye     0 Nay 
 
 
      
 

***RESOLUTION ADOPTED*** 
________________________     11/16/2024   
Signature of Recorder        Date 
  



HUDSON COUNTY COMMUNITY COLLEGE 
 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES MEETING 
 

Tuesday, November 26, 2024          
 

IX. ACADEMIC AND STUDENT AFFAIRS RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

 
1. Resolution Authorizing Renewal of Affiliation Agreement Between Hudson County Community 

College (HCCC), Barnabas Health Medical Group, and Robert Wood Johnson Physician 
Enterprise, P.A., for Clinical Experiences in HCCC’s Medical Assisting Program 
 

WHEREAS, Hudson County Community College (“College”) offers a Medical Assisting Program 
(“Program”) through its School of Nursing and Health Professions that is accredited by the Commission 
on Accreditation of Allied Health Education Programs (CAAHEP) upon the recommendation of the 
Medical Assisting Education Review Board on Accreditation; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the Program includes a clinical experience component; and,  
 
WHEREAS, the Program requires additional sites at which its students can fulfill the requisite clinical 
experiences; and,  
 
WHEREAS, Barnabas Health Medical Group and Robert Wood Johnson Physician Enterprise, P.A. 
(“Group”) have the capacity to meet these needs of the Program; and, 
 
WHEREAS, Hudson County Community College seeks to renew its Affiliation Agreement (“Agreement”) 
with the Group whereby students enrolled in the Program will be able to complete clinical experiences, 
effective December 1, 2024; and, 
 
WHEREAS, this Agreement will remain in effect for two (2) years unless otherwise terminated by either 
party in accordance with the parameters established in the Agreement; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the Administration, and Academic and Student Affairs Committee, recommend authorization 
of the renewal of the Agreement between Hudson County Community College and the Group; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Trustees of Hudson County Community 
College authorize renewal of the Agreement between Hudson County Community College and the Group, 
effective December 1, 2024. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Board of Trustees authorize the College’s Administration to take all 
steps necessary to effectuate the terms of this resolution.  

 
2. Resolution Authorizing Renewal of Affiliation Agreement Between Hudson County Community 

College (HCCC) and Jersey City School District for Clinical Experiences in HCCC’s Registered 
Nursing Program 

 
WHEREAS, Hudson County Community College (“College”) offers a Registered Nursing (RN) Program 
(“Program”) through its School of Nursing and Health Professions that is approved by the New Jersey 
Board of Nursing and accredited by the Accreditation Commission for Education in Nursing (ACEN); and,  
 
WHEREAS, the Program includes a clinical experience component; and,  
 



WHEREAS, the Program requires additional sites at which its students can fulfill the requisite clinical 
experiences; and,  
 
WHEREAS, Jersey City School District (“JCSD”) has the capacity to meet the needs of the Program; and, 
 
WHEREAS, Hudson County Community College seeks to renew its Affiliation Agreement (“Agreement”) 
with JCSD whereby students enrolled in the Program will be able to complete clinical experiences; and, 
 
WHEREAS, this Agreement will remain in effect for two (2) years unless otherwise terminated by either 
party in accordance with the parameters established in the Agreement; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the Administration, and Academic and Student Affairs Committee, recommend the 
authorization of the renewal of the Agreement between Hudson County Community College and Jersey 
City School District; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Trustees of Hudson County Community 
College authorize the renewal of the Agreement between Hudson County Community College and Jersey 
City School District, effective January 31, 2025.  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Board of Trustees authorize the College’s Administration to take all 
steps necessary to effectuate the terms of this resolution.  
 
3. Resolution Authorizing Affiliation Agreement Between Hudson County Community College 

(HCCC) and The New Jersey Imaging Network (NJIN) Montclair for Clinical Experiences in 
HCCC’s Radiography Program  

 
WHEREAS, Hudson County Community College (“College”) offers a Radiography Program (“Program”) 
through its School of Nursing and Health Professions that is accredited by the State of New Jersey and 
the Joint Review Committee on Education in Radiologic Technology (JRCERT); and,  

   
WHEREAS, the Program includes a clinical experience component; and,   

   
WHEREAS, the Program requires additional sites at which its students can fulfill the requisite clinical 
experiences; and,   
   
WHEREAS, The New Jersey Imaging Network, located at 116 Park Street, Montclair, New Jersey 07042 
(“NJIN Montclair”), has the capacity to meet the needs of the Program; and,  
   
WHEREAS, Hudson County Community College seeks to enter into an Affiliation Agreement 
(“Agreement”) with NJIN Montclair whereby students enrolled in the Program will be able to complete 
clinical experiences; and,  
   
WHEREAS, this Agreement will remain in effect for two (2) years unless otherwise terminated by either 
party in accordance with the parameters established in the Agreement; and,  
   
WHEREAS, the Administration, and Academic and Student Affairs Committee, recommend the 
authorization of the Affiliation Agreement between Hudson County Community College and The New 
Jersey Imaging Network located at 116 Park Street, Montclair, New Jersey 07042;   

   
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Trustees of Hudson County Community 
College authorize the Affiliation Agreement between Hudson County Community College and The New 
Jersey Imaging Network, 116 Park Street, Montclair, New Jersey 07042, effective December 1, 2024.  

   



BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Board of Trustees authorize the College’s Administration to take 
all steps necessary to effectuate the terms of this resolution.   
 
4. Resolution Authorizing Affiliation Agreement Between Hudson County Community College 

(HCCC) and Hackensack Meridian Health, Inc. for Clinical Experiences in HCCC’s Registered 
Nursing and Radiography Programs 
 

WHEREAS, Hudson County Community College (“College”) offers a Registered Nursing Program and a 
Radiography Program (“Programs”) through its School of Nursing and Health Professions; and,  
 
WHEREAS, the Programs are approved by the New Jersey Board of Nursing and accredited by the 
Accreditation Commission for Education in Nursing (ACEN), the State of New Jersey, and the Joint 
Review Committee on Education in Radiologic Technology (JRCERT), respectively; and,  

   
WHEREAS, the Programs include a clinical experience component; and,   

   
WHEREAS, the Programs require additional sites at which its students can fulfill the requisite clinical 
experiences; and,   
   
WHEREAS, Hackensack Meridian Health, Inc. has the capacity to meet the needs of the Programs; and,  
   
WHEREAS, Hudson County Community College seeks to enter into an Affiliation Agreement 
(“Agreement”) with Hackensack Meridian Health, Inc. whereby students enrolled in the Programs will be 
able to complete clinical experiences; and,  
   
WHEREAS, this Agreement will remain in effect unless otherwise terminated by either party in 
accordance with the parameters established in the Agreement; and,  
   
WHEREAS, the Administration, and Academic and Student Affairs Committee, recommend the 
authorization of the Affiliation Agreement between Hudson County Community College and Hackensack 
Meridian Health, Inc.;   

   
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Trustees of Hudson County Community 
College authorize the Affiliation Agreement between Hudson County Community College and 
Hackensack Meridian Health, Inc., retroactive to November 1, 2024.  

   
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Board of Trustees authorize the College’s Administration to take 
all steps necessary to effectuate the terms of this resolution.   

 
5. Resolution Authorizing Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) Between Hudson County 

Community College (HCCC) and Engage NJ for HCCC to Serve as an ENGAGECorps VISTA 
Project Partner Campus Site for 2024-25 
 

WHEREAS, Hudson County Community College (“College”) provides its diverse communities with 
inclusive, high-quality educational programs and services that promote student success and upward 
social and economic mobility; and,  
 
WHEREAS, EngageCorps VISTA Program (“Program”), which is an Engage NJ AmeriCorps VISTA 
Project, requires sites at which its clients can complete internships; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the College’s School of Continuing Education and Workforce Development (“CEWD”) has 
the capacity to meet this need of the Program through the provision of an internship in which the student 
gains experience in capacity building within CEWD’s Healthcare Team; and, 
 



WHEREAS, Hudson County Community College seeks to enter into a Memorandum of Understanding 
(“MOU”) with Engage NJ whereby clients enrolled in the Program will be able to complete internship 
experiences; and, 
 
WHEREAS, this MOU will remain in effect unless otherwise terminated by either party in accordance with 
the parameters established in the MOU; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the Administration, and Academic and Student Affairs Committee, recommend the 
authorization of the Memorandum of Understanding between Hudson County Community College and 
Engage NJ; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Trustees of Hudson County Community 
College authorize the Memorandum of Understanding between Hudson County Community College and 
Engage NJ, effective upon the last signature.  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Board of Trustees authorize the College’s Administration to take all 
steps necessary to effectuate the terms of this resolution.  

 
6. Resolution Authorizing Agreement Between Hudson County Community College (HCCC) and 

New Jersey Council of County Colleges (NJCCC) for College Readiness Now XI 
 
WHEREAS, the New Jersey Council of County Colleges (“NJCCC”) and the Office of the Secretary of 
Higher Education (“OSHE”) have entered into a Memorandum of Understanding (“MOU”) for the 
implementation of the College Readiness Now XI Project; and, 
 
WHEREAS, Hudson County Community College (“College”) was awarded $44,045.00 available through 
College Readiness Now XI to execute a project with selected local school districts to ensure high school 
students, particularly students who are living below the poverty line, are college ready in math and/or 
English by the time of high school graduation, and seeks to enter into a Project Agreement (“Agreement”) 
with the NJCCC for this purpose; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the term of the Agreement is through June 30, 2025 unless otherwise terminated by either 
party in accordance with the parameters established in the Agreement; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the Administration, and the Academic and Student Affairs Committee, recommend the 
authorization of the Agreement between Hudson County Community College and the New Jersey Council 
of County Colleges; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Trustees of Hudson County Community 
College authorize this Agreement between Hudson County Community College and the New Jersey 
Council of County Colleges, retroactive to July 1, 2024. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Board of Trustees authorize the Administration to take all steps 
necessary to effectuate the terms of this resolution. 
 
7. Resolution Authorizing Amendment to the JED Campus Services Agreement Between Hudson 

County Community College (HCCC) and The JED Foundation for the JED Campus 
Collaborative for Student Parents 

 
WHEREAS, Hudson County Community College (“College”) and The JED Foundation (“JED 
Foundation”); collectively, the parties (“the parties”), entered into the JED Campus Services Agreement 
(“Agreement”) dated August 1, 2021, through which The JED Foundation assists the College in effectively 
assessing and supporting students’ needs; and,  
 



WHEREAS, the parties desire to amend the existing Agreement to include the College’s participation in 
The JED Campus Collaborative for Student Parents; and,  
 
WHEREAS, the Administration, and Academic and Student Affairs Committee, recommend the 
authorization of the amendment of the existing Agreement between Hudson County Community College 
and The JED Foundation;  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Trustees of Hudson County Community 
College authorize the amendment of the existing Agreement between Hudson County Community 
College and The JED Foundation, retroactive to October 8, 2024.  
  
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Board authorize the Administration to take all steps necessary to 
effectuate the purpose of this resolution. 
 
8. Resolution Authorizing Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) Between Hudson County 

Community College (HCCC) and Rose Pan African Education at Popenguine, Senegal 
 
WHEREAS, Hudson County Community College (“College”) provides its diverse communities with 
inclusive, high-quality educational programs and services that promote student success and upward 
social and economic mobility; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the College seeks to provide students additional experiential learning opportunities through 
the development of study abroad initiatives that are aligned to, and further enhance, HCCC’s curricula; 
and, 
 
WHEREAS, in service of that objective, the College seeks to enter into a Memorandum of Understanding 
(“MOU”) with Rose Pan African Education at Popenguine, Senegal, whereby students enrolled in a 
specific course will have the opportunity to participate in a study abroad experience; and,  
 
WHEREAS, this MOU will remain in effect for five (5) years unless otherwise terminated by either party in 
accordance with the parameters established in the Agreement; and,  
 
WHEREAS, the Administration, and Academic and Student Affairs Committee, recommend the 
authorization of the MOU between Hudson County Community College and Rose Pan African Education 
at Popenguine, Senegal; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Trustees of Hudson County Community 
College authorize the Memorandum of Understanding between Hudson County Community College and 
Rose Pan African Education at Popenguine, Senegal, effective upon date of last signature.  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Board of Trustees authorize the College’s Administration to take all 
steps necessary to effectuate the terms of this resolution.  
 
9. Resolution Authorizing Academic Calendar for the Fall 2025 Term 
 
WHEREAS, Hudson County Community College (“College”) is committed to ensuring students’ success, 
and the College develops an academic calendar that outlines important dates pertinent to academic 
terms; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the Academic Calendar Planning Committee is comprised of individuals from across the 
College, and the academic calendar planning process is a joint effort between the Offices of Academic 
Affairs and Student Affairs; and, 
 
WHEREAS, an academic calendar has been developed for the fall 2025 term; and, 
 
WHEREAS, this academic calendar complies with all internal and external planning guidelines; and, 



 
WHEREAS, the Administration, and Academic and Student Affairs Committee, recommend the 
authorization of the Academic Calendar for the fall 2025 term; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Trustees of Hudson County Community 
College authorize the Academic Calendar for the fall 2025 term.  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Board of Trustees authorize the College’s Administration to take 
all steps necessary to effectuate the terms of this resolution. 
 
10. Resolution Authorizing New Academic Certificate in Pharmacy Technician [CIP Code: 51.2208] 

 
WHEREAS, Hudson County Community College (“College”) aims to provide high-quality educational 
opportunities that promote student success and upward social and economic mobility; and,  
   
WHEREAS, the College seeks to expand its offerings to meet student and market demand; and,  

 
WHEREAS, the College has developed an Academic Certificate in Pharmacy Technician to address 
student and market demand; and,   
  
WHEREAS, the Academic Certificate in Pharmacy Technician provides students with the knowledge and 
skills required to work within a hospital, retail pharmacy, or long-term care facility; and,  
   
WHEREAS, the Academic Certificate in Pharmacy curriculum articulates into the College’s Associate of 
Applied Science in Health Science degree program; and,  

  
WHEREAS, the Administration, and the Academic and Student Affairs Committee, recommend the 
authorization of the Academic Certificate in Pharmacy Technician, effective January 2025;  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Trustees of Hudson County Community  
College authorize the Academic Certificate in Pharmacy Technician.  
   
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Board of Trustees authorize the College’s Administration to take 
all steps necessary to effectuate the terms of this resolution.  

 
 
 
RESOLUTION: 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Trustees approve the recommendations of the 
President, Administration, and Academic and Student Affairs Committee as outlined above in Item IX., 
Academic and Student Affairs Recommendations 1-10:   

 
1) Resolution Authorizing Renewal of Affiliation Agreement Between Hudson County Community 
College (HCCC), Barnabas Health Medical Group, and Robert Wood Johnson Physician Enterprise, 
P.A., for Clinical Experiences in HCCC’s Medical Assisting Program; 2) Resolution Authorizing 
Renewal of Affiliation Agreement Between Hudson County Community College (HCCC) and Jersey 
City School District for Clinical Experiences in HCCC’s Registered Nursing Program; 3) Resolution 
Authorizing Affiliation Agreement Between Hudson County Community College (HCCC) and The New 
Jersey Imaging Network (NJIN) Montclair for Clinical Experiences in HCCC’s Radiography Program; 
4) Resolution Authorizing Affiliation Agreement Between Hudson County Community College (HCCC) 
and Hackensack Meridian Health, Inc. for Clinical Experiences in HCCC’s Registered Nursing and 
Radiography Programs; 5) Resolution Authorizing Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) Between 
Hudson County Community College (HCCC) and Engage NJ for HCCC to Serve as an 
ENGAGECorps VISTA Project Partner Campus Site for 2024-25; 6) Resolution Authorizing 



Agreement Between Hudson County Community College (HCCC) and New Jersey Council of County 
Colleges (NJCCC) for College Readiness Now XI; 7) Resolution Authorizing Amendment to the JED 
Campus Services Agreement Between Hudson County Community College (HCCC) and The JED 
Foundation for the JED Campus Collaborative for Student Parents; 8) Resolution Authorizing 
Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) Between Hudson County Community College (HCCC) and 
Rose Pan African Education at Popenguine, Senegal; 9) Resolution Authorizing Academic Calendar 
for the Fall 2025 Term; and, 10) Resolution Authorizing New Academic Certificate in Pharmacy 
Technician [CIP Code: 51.2208]. 

 
 
 
INTRODUCED BY:    Pamela Gardner  
   
SECONDED BY:    Silvia Rodriguez  
  
DATE:     November 26, 2024     
 
 
DeFazio, Edward    AYE    
Doria, Joseph     ABSENT   
Gardner, Pamela     AYE   
Gargiulo, Frank     AYE   
Gemma, Stacy     AYE   
Kenny, Roberta     AYE   
Lombardo, Vincent    AYE   
Rodriguez, Silvia    AYE   
Stahl, Harold     AYE   
Peña, Jeanette, Chair    AYE   
 
 
           9        Aye     0 Nay 
 
 

***RESOLUTION ADOPTED*** 
________________________     11/26/2024   
Signature of Recorder        Date 
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X.  NEW BUSINESS 
 
 
None 
  



HUDSON COUNTY COMMUNITY COLLEGE 
 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES MEETING 
 

Tuesday, November 26, 2024          
 
 

XI.  ADJOURNMENT 
 

RESOLUTION: 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the November 26, 2024 meeting of the Hudson County 
Community College Board of Trustees be adjourned at      P.M. 
 
INTRODUCED BY:    Pamela Gardner  
 
SECONDED BY:    Jeanette Peña   
 
DATE:     November 26, 2024         
 
 
DeFazio, Edward    AYE    
Doria, Joseph     ABSENT   
Gardner, Pamela     AYE   
Gargiulo, Frank     AYE   
Gemma, Stacy     AYE   
Kenny, Roberta     AYE   
Lombardo, Vincent    AYE   
Rodriguez, Silvia    AYE   
Stahl, Harold     AYE   
Peña, Jeanette, Chair    AYE   
 
 
           9        Aye     0 Nay 
 

***RESOLUTION ADOPTED*** 
________________________     11/26/2024   
Signature of Recorder        Date 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 
The Board of Trustees 
Hudson County Community College 
Jersey City, New Jersey 

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Opinions 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Hudson County Community College (the “College”), a component 
unit of Hudson County, New Jersey, and the Hudson County Community College Foundation, Inc. (the “Foundation”), as a 
discretely presented component unit of the College as of and for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2024 and 2023 and the related 
notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the College’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of 
contents. 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position 
of the College, and the Foundation, the discretely presented component unit of the College as of June 30, 2024 and 2023, and 
the respective changes in financial position, and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance 
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

Basis for Opinions 

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the 
standards (GAAS) applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller 
General of the United States. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities 
for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of the College and to meet 
our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the 
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions. The financial statements 
of the discretely presented component unit was not audited in accordance with Government Auditing Standards. 

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal 
control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether 
due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or events, considered in 
the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the College’s ability to continue as a going concern for twelve months beyond 
the financial statement date, including any currently known information that may raise substantial doubt shortly thereafter. 
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 
 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinions. Reasonable assurance 
is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance 
with generally accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement 
when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, 
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 
Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would 
influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial statements. 
 
In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing Standards, we: 
 

 Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. 
 

 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, and 
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a test basis, 
evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. 

 

 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate 
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the College’s internal 
control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed. 

 

 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates 
made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the financial statements. 

 

 Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial 
doubt about the College’s ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of time. 

 
We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and 
timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related matters that we identified during the audit. 
 
Required Supplementary Information 
 
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s discussion and 
analysis and budgetary comparison information on pages 4-11 and required pension and post-retirement medical benefits 
information on pages 44 - 47 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility 
of management and, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting 
Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an 
appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required 
supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which 
consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for 
consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained 
during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information 
because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 
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Supplementary Information 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise the 
College’s basic financial statements. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards, as required by Title 2 U.S. 
Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for 
Federal Awards; and New Jersey OMB Circular 15-08, Single Audit Policy for Recipients of Federal Grants, State Grants and 
State Aid, respectively, are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial 
statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying 
accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing 
procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and 
reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial 
statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing 
standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the combining and individual nonmajor fund 
financial statements and the schedule of expenditures of federal awards are fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to 
the basic financial statements as a whole. 

Other Information  

Management is responsible for the other information included in the annual report. The other information comprises the 
introductory and statistical sections but does not include the basic financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. Our 
opinions on the basic financial statements do not cover the other information, and we do not express an opinion or any form of 
assurance thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the basic financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and consider 
whether a material inconsistency exists between the other information and the basic financial statements, or the other 
information otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work performed, we conclude that an uncorrected 
material misstatement of the other information exists, we are required to describe it in our report. 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards  

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated November 12, 2024 on our 
consideration of the College’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions 
of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the 
scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide 
an opinion on the effectiveness of the College’s internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an 
integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering College’s internal control 
over financial reporting and compliance. 

DONOHUE, GIRONDA, DORIA & TOMKINS, LLC 
Certified Public Accountants 

Secaucus, New Jersey 
November 12, 2024 
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HUDSON COUNTY COMMUNITY COLLEGE 
(A Component Unit of Hudson County, New Jersey) 
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2024 AND 2023 

Introduction 

The following discussion and analysis provides an overview of the financial position and activities of the Hudson County 
Community College (the “College”) for the fiscal years ending June 30, 2024 with comparative information from previous 
fiscal years.  This discussion has been prepared by management and should be read in conjunction with the financial statements 
including the notes thereto, which follow this section. 

Using the Financial Statements 

The College’s financial report includes three basic financial statements: The Statements of Net Position, the Statements of 
Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position and the Statements of Cash Flows. These statements are prepared in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America and Government Accounting 
Standards Board (GASB) pronouncements.  The College presents financial statements in accordance with GASB Statement 
No. 34, “Basic Financial Statements – and Management’s Discussion and Analysis – for State and Local Governments” and 
GASB Statement No. 35, “Basic Financial Statements – and Management’s Discussion and Analysis – for Public Colleges and 
Universities”.  The statements establish standards for external financial reporting for public colleges and universities and require 
that financial statements be presented on a consolidated basis to focus better on the College as a whole.   Resources are classified 
into three net asset categories – unrestricted, restricted and invested in capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation and 
related debt.  The College’s financial statements also include the Hudson County Community College Foundation as a 
discretely presented component unit in accordance with the requirements of Section 2100 of GASB Codification of 
Governmental Accounting and Financial Reporting Standards, as amended by GASB Statement No. 39. 

Statements of Net Position 

The statements of net position present the financial position of the College at the end of the fiscal year and include all assets 
and liabilities of the College.  The difference between total assets and total liabilities (net position) is one indicator of the 
financial condition of the College, while the change in net position is an indicator of whether the financial condition has 
improved or declined during the year.  The statement states two asset and liability classifications; a) current assets and liabilities 
that are less than one year and b) non-current assets and liabilities that are more than one year.  There are three net position 
classifications a) investment in capital assets, net of related debt b) restricted assets (expendable and non-expendable) and c) 
unrestricted assets.   

Total net position increased to $183,048,260, which is 4.29% over 2023. Without the pension liability required by GASB 
Statement No. 68, the total net position increased $6,477,796 to $201,571,091, which is 3.32% under 2023.   
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HUDSON COUNTY COMMUNITY COLLEGE 
(A Component Unit of Hudson County, New Jersey) 
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2024 AND 2023 
 

 

 

A summary of the College’s assets, liabilities, and net position on June 30, 2024, 2023, and 2022, respectively: 
 

 
 
 

2024 2023 2022

ASSETS
Current Assets:

Cash 55,665,786$      64,664,642$      60,976,674$      
Accounts Receivable 7,466,664          4,575,564          2,376,099          
Grants Receivable 4,594,241          5,608,160          8,351,135          
Due from County of Hudson 16,788,663        1,265,629          779,167             
Other Receivables 434,491             823,172             257,468             
Prepaid Expenses and Other Assets 209,268             132,714             71,119               

Total Current Assets 85,159,113        77,069,881        72,811,662        

Noncurrent Assets:
Security Deposits 66,924               66,924               66,924               
Capital Assets, Net 139,948,554      127,657,679      131,351,750      
Right-of-Use Leased Assets, Net 416,009             615,693             -                         

Total Noncurrent Assets 140,431,487      128,340,296      131,418,674      
Total Assets 225,590,600      205,410,177      204,230,336      

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 2,772,890          5,396,451          5,001,451          

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities:

Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses 17,145,351        3,512,218          3,281,907          
Accrued Salaries and Benefits 367,800             569,548             796,568             
Unearned Revenue -                         -                         439,350             
Unearned Grant Revenue 3,237,424          2,345,983          568,991             
Other Accrued Liabilities 492,779             791,851             674,092             
Current Portion of Long-Term Obligations:

Compensated Absences 1,877,426          1,547,822          1,448,163          
Financed Purchase Liability 88,616               85,274               90,810               
Lease Liability 207,539             189,040             -                         

Total Current Liabilities: 23,416,935        9,041,736          7,299,881          

Noncurrent Liabilities:
Deposits Held in Custody for Others 212,885             562,639             721,209             
Compensated Absences 1,300,698          1,307,255          1,355,565          
Financed Purchase Liability 549,700             647,161             735,744             
Lease Liability 247,006             454,544             -                         
Net Pension Liability 18,507,055        20,302,011        15,428,792        

Total Noncurrent Liabilities 20,817,344        23,273,610        18,241,310        
Total Liabilities 44,234,279        32,315,346        25,541,191        

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 1,080,951          2,977,113          9,476,746          

NET POSITION
Net Investment in Capital Assets 139,271,702      126,897,353      131,351,750      
Restricted Expendable for Scholarships 153,131             68,670               67,596               
Unrestricted 43,623,427        48,548,146        42,794,504        

Total Net Position 183,048,260$    175,514,169$    174,213,850$    

5

DRAFT



HUDSON COUNTY COMMUNITY COLLEGE 
(A Component Unit of Hudson County, New Jersey) 
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2024 AND 2023 
 

 

 

Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net position 
 
A summary of the College’s revenues, expenses and changes in net position for the years ended June 30, 2024, 2023, and 2022, 
respectively: 
 

 
 
 
 
 

2024 2023 2022

OPERATING REVENUES
Student Tuition and Fees 39,442,972$      38,133,904$      35,204,996$      
Less: Student Financial Aid (34,786,700)       (31,131,444)       (30,361,658)       

4,656,272          7,002,460          4,843,338          

Federal Awards 4,754,322          4,934,550          3,741,755          
State Financial Assistance 13,817,256        11,906,465        15,258,518        
Local and Private Sponsored Programs 2,321,025          1,501,010          1,007,547          
Other Operating Revenues 1,589,693          1,461,910          545,658             

Total Operating Revenues 27,138,568        26,806,395        25,396,816        

OPERATING EXPENSES
Instructions 35,810,738        30,240,578        29,397,372        
Academic Support 4,547,299          3,728,415          4,140,959          
Student Services 7,190,651          5,620,707          5,186,288          
Institutional Support 29,165,102        29,663,633        27,264,199        
Operation and Maintenance of Plant 6,477,362          6,184,361          5,845,020          
Conference Center 809,170             533,915             394,761             
Student Aid 3,180,600          6,152,788          18,164,085        
Depreciation 6,141,576          5,903,572          5,899,596          
Amortization 199,684             199,684             -                         

Total Operating Expenses 93,522,182        88,227,653        96,292,280        

Loss from Operations (66,383,614)       (61,421,258)       (70,895,464)       

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Federal Awards:

Pell Grants 22,100,510        19,597,727        18,608,507        
Educational Stabilization Fund 242,196             10,270,976        27,505,765        

State of New Jersey Appropriations 11,234,416        9,325,477          8,824,897          
Hudson County Appropriations 21,302,890        20,145,250        19,176,161        
Interest Income 3,210,061          2,145,428          119,143             
Interest Expense (33,488)              (44,264)              -                         
Gain on Sale of Property -                         -                         7,979,080          

Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses) 58,056,585        61,440,594        82,213,553        

Net Changes in Net Position
Before Capital Appropriations (8,327,029)         19,336               11,318,089        

Capital Appropriations 15,861,120        1,280,983          759,470             

Change in Net Position 7,534,091          1,300,319          12,077,559        
Net Position, July 1 175,514,169      174,213,850      162,136,291      
Net Position, June 30 183,048,260$    175,514,169$    174,213,850$    
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HUDSON COUNTY COMMUNITY COLLEGE 
(A Component Unit of Hudson County, New Jersey) 
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2024 AND 2023 
 

 

 

The statement of revenues, expenses and changes in net position presents the results of operations for the College as a whole.  
Revenues, expenses and other changes in net position are reported as either operating or non-operating.  Significant recurring 
sources of college revenue, state and county appropriations and investment earnings, are defined by GASB Statement No. 35 
as non-operating.   
 
Comparison of major revenues by source for 2024 and 2023 is as follows: 
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HUDSON COUNTY COMMUNITY COLLEGE 
(A Component Unit of Hudson County, New Jersey) 
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2024 AND 2023 
 

 

 

Revenue 
 
The College received operating and nonoperating revenue from the following main sources: 
 
 Tuition and Fee Revenue 
 Federal Grants 
 State of New Jersey Grants 
  Local Grants 
 State of New Jersey Appropriation, and 
 County of Hudson Appropriation 
 
The following is a graphic illustration of revenue by source for the year ended June 30, 2024: 
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HUDSON COUNTY COMMUNITY COLLEGE 
(A Component Unit of Hudson County, New Jersey) 
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2024 AND 2023 
 

 

 

Expenses 
 
A comparison of operating expenses by function and natural classifications for the year ended June 30, 2024 is as follows: 
 

EXPENSES BY FUNCTION 
 

 
 

EXPENSES BY NATURAL CLASSIFICATION 
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HUDSON COUNTY COMMUNITY COLLEGE 
(A Component Unit of Hudson County, New Jersey) 
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2024 AND 2023 
 

 

 

Capital 
 
In 2024, Hudson County Community College continued to implement the College’s Facilities Master Plan and technology 
upgrades. 
 
The goal of the facilities master plan is to meet projected student enrollment growth, implement new academic programs, 
expand current programs, develop the remaining portion of the college campus and continue to move from lease facilities to 
college-owned facilities. 
 
The College had $18,432,451 in capital additions and no disposals during 2024. The capital additions are comprised of building 
improvements and an investment in equipment.  Consistent with the facilities Master Plan, the College initiated construction 
of the Center for Student Success in 2024.  The Center for Student Success will transform the campus.  It will provide state of 
the art classrooms, office space, and much more.   
 
The College continues to invest in high-quality learning and administrative technologies. Software for instruction, proctoring, 
plagiarism detection, and software for improved accessibility for students' benefit has been added and increased. The College 
continues to provide Adobe Creative Cloud named licenses and virtual desktop software for students' use on and off campus. 
The College continues adding full video interactive (ITV) classrooms and administrative spaces. Both Culinary and Science 
Technology Engineering and Math (STEM) labs are now outfitted for hybrid instruction. The College has implemented a 
Student Success platform, EAB Navigate, being used to monitor student performance and communicate with students in an 
impactful way. 
 
Other Economic and Financial Considerations  
 
The following is a description of currently known facts, decisions, or conditions that are expected to have a significant effect 
on the financial position (net position) or results of operation (revenues, expenses, and other changes in net position) of the 
College. 
 
Total student credit hours in the fiscal year 2024 totaling 160,431 is an increase of 5% when compared to the fiscal year 2023 
total student credit hours in the amount of 152,813.  Student credit hours had also increased 3.6% in fiscal year 2023 over 2022.   
 
Revenues for State Appropriations in 2024 increased $1,908,939 to $11,234,416, versus an increase of  $500,580 in 2023 due 
to new funding formula in 2022. 
  
Revenues for County Appropriations in 2024 increased $1,157,640 to $21,302,890, similar to an increase of $969,089 to 
$20,145,250 in 2023.  College tuition increased 4% per credit in 2024 to cover the College’s contractual obligations.   
 
The College received several sources of funding to cover COVID-19 related expenses and lost revenues. The primary source 
of these funds being Educational Stabilization Fund (ESF).  In 2023 the College recognized $242,196 in ESF, which was a 
decrease of $10,028,780 when compared to the $10,270,976 recognized in 2023.  

 
The cost of employee pensions (PERS) paid in the past by the State continues to be charged to the College. The pension payable 
liability in 2024 is $1,707,715. 
 
The College has a managed services agreement with Ellucian for ERP support which extends through December 2024.  
 
During 2022, a memorandum of agreement was approved for each of the following four unions: Professional Association, 
Support Staff Federation, Adjunct Faculty Federation, and Academic Administrative Association. Also, each contract expires 
in June of 2025.  
 
The College was accredited by the Middle States Accreditations for eight years, through June of 2028. 
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HUDSON COUNTY COMMUNITY COLLEGE 
(A Component Unit of Hudson County, New Jersey) 
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2024 AND 2023 
 

 

 

Contacting the Hudson County Community College’s Financial Management  
 
The Management Discussion and Analysis of this financial report is designed to provide the reader with a snapshot of the 
Hudson County Community College’s finances. Questions about this report or additional financial information can be requested 
from the Finance Department located at 26 Journal Square, Jersey City, NJ 07306. 
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HUDSON COUNTY COMMUNITY COLLEGE
(A Component Unit of Hudson County, New Jersey)
STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION
JUNE 30, 2024 AND 2023

2024 2023
ASSETS

Current Assets:
Cash and Cash Equivalents 55,665,786$      64,664,642$      
Accounts Receivable 7,466,664          4,575,564          
Grants Receivable 4,594,241          5,608,160          
Due from County of Hudson 16,788,663        1,265,629          
Other Receivables 434,491             823,172             
Prepaid Expenses and Other Assets 209,268             132,714             

Total Current Assets 85,159,113        77,069,881        

Noncurrent Assets:
Security Deposits 66,924               66,924               
Capital Assets, Net 139,948,554      127,657,679      
Right-of-Use Leased Assets, Net 416,009             615,693             

Total Noncurrent Assets 140,431,487      128,340,296      

Total Assets 225,590,600      205,410,177      

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred Pension Liability 2,772,890          5,396,451          

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities:

Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses 17,145,351$      3,512,218$        
Accrued Salaries and Benefits 367,800             569,548             
Unearned Grant Revenue 3,237,424          2,345,983          
Other Accrued Liabilities 492,779             791,851             
Current Portion of Long-Term Obligations:

Compensated Absences 1,877,426          1,547,822          
Financed Purchase Liability 88,616               85,274               
Lease Liability 207,539             189,040             

Total Current Liabilities 23,416,935        9,041,736          

Non-Current Liabilities:
Deposits Held in Custody for Others 212,885             562,639             
Compensated Absences 1,300,698          1,307,255          
Financed Purchase Liability 549,700             647,161             
Lease Liability 247,006             454,544             
Net Pension Liability 18,507,055        20,302,011        

Total Non-Current Liabilities 20,817,344        23,273,610        

Total Liabilities 44,234,279        32,315,346        

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred Pension Liability 1,080,951          2,977,113          

NET POSITION
Net Investment in Capital Assets 139,271,702      126,897,353      
Restricted Expendable for Scholarships 153,131             68,670               
Unrestricted 43,623,427        48,548,146        

Total Net Position 183,048,260$    175,514,169$    

See Accompanying Notes to Financial Statements
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HUDSON COUNTY COMMUNITY COLLEGE
(A Component Unit of Hudson County, New Jersey)
STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2024 AND 2023

2024 2023

OPERATING REVENUES
Student Tuition and Fees 39,442,972$      38,133,904$      
Less: Student Financial Aid (34,786,700)       (31,131,444)       

4,656,272          7,002,460          

Federal Awards 4,754,322          4,934,550          
State Financial Assistance 13,817,256        11,906,465        
Local and Private Sponsored Programs 2,321,025          1,501,010          
Other Operating Revenues 1,589,693          1,461,910          

Total Operating Revenues 27,138,568        26,806,395        

OPERATING EXPENSES
Instructions 35,810,738        30,240,578        
Academic Support 4,547,299          3,728,415          
Student Services 7,190,651          5,620,707          
Institutional Support 29,165,102        29,663,633        
Operation and Maintenance of Plant 6,477,362          6,184,361          
Conference Center 809,170             533,915             
Student Aid 3,180,600          6,152,788          
Depreciation 6,141,576          5,903,572          
Amortization 199,684             199,684             

Total Operating Expenses 93,522,182        88,227,653        

Loss from Operations (66,383,614)       (61,421,258)       

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Federal Awards:

Pell Grants 22,100,510        19,597,727        
Educational Stabilization Fund 242,196             10,270,976        

State of New Jersey:
Appropriations 11,234,416        9,325,477          

Hudson County Appropriations 21,302,890        20,145,250        
Interest Income 3,210,061          2,145,428          
Interest Expense (33,488)              (44,264)              

Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses) 58,056,585        61,440,594        

Net (Expense) Revenue and Changes in Net Position
Before Capital Appropriations (8,327,029)         19,336               

Capital Appropriations 15,861,120        1,280,983          

Change in Net Position 7,534,091          1,300,319          
Net Position, July 1 175,514,169      174,213,850      
Net Position, June 30 183,048,260$    175,514,169$    

See Accompanying Notes to Financial Statements
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HUDSON COUNTY COMMUNITY COLLEGE
(A Component Unit of Hudson County, New Jersey)
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2024 AND 2023

2024 2023

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Tuition and Fees 1,765,172$        4,398,544$        
Federal Awards 4,912,249          3,841,213          
State Financial Assistance 14,278,507        13,905,614        
Nongovernmental Grants and Contracts 2,321,025          1,657,912          
Other Operating Receipts 1,978,374          896,206             
Payments for Employee Salaries and Benefits (58,032,018)       (50,112,777)       
Payments to Suppliers 2,204,065          (26,488,459)       
Payments to Students for Financial Aid (3,180,600)         (6,152,788)         

Net Cash Used by Operating Activities (33,753,226)       (58,054,535)       

CASH FLOWS FROM NON-CAPITAL FINANCING
ACTIVITIES
State of New Jersey Appropriations 11,234,416        9,325,477          
Hudson County Appropriations 5,779,856          19,658,788        
Federal Awards:

Pell Grants 22,007,755        19,604,387        
Educational Stabilization Fund 1,621,133          13,686,670        

Student Organization Agency Transactions (349,754)            (158,570)            
Net Cash Provided by Noncapital Financing Activities 40,293,406        62,116,752        

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of Capital Assets (18,432,451)       (2,209,501)         
Payment of Financed Purchase Liability (94,119)              (94,119)              
Payment of Lease Payable (189,039)            (171,793)            
Interest Paid on Lease Payable (33,488)              (44,264)              

Net Cash Used by Capital and Related
Financing Activities (18,749,097)       (2,519,677)         

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest Received on Investments 3,210,061          2,145,428          

Net Increase in Cash (8,998,856)         3,687,968          
Cash, July 1 64,664,642        60,976,674        
Cash, June 30 55,665,786$      64,664,642$      

See Accompanying Notes to Financial Statements (Page 1 of 2)
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HUDSON COUNTY COMMUNITY COLLEGE
(A Component Unit of Hudson County, New Jersey)
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2024 AND 2023

2024 2023

RECONCILIATION OF LOSS FROM OPERATIONS TO
NET CASH USED IN OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Loss from Operations (66,383,614)$     (61,421,258)$     
Adjustments to Reconcile Loss from Operations to

Net Cash Used by Operating Activities:
Depreciation Expense 6,141,576          5,903,572          
Amortization Expense 199,684             199,684             
Changes in Assets:

Accounts Receivable (2,891,100)         (2,199,465)         
Grants Receivable (272,263)            (679,379)            
Other Receivables 388,681             (565,704)            
Prepaid Expenses (76,554)              (61,595)              

Change in Deferred Outflows of Resources:
Deferred Pension Liability 2,623,561          (395,000)            

Changes in Liabilities:
Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses 29,494,253        1,511,294          
Accrued Salaries and Benefits (201,748)            (227,020)            
Unearned Revenue 891,441             1,337,642          
Other Accrued Expenses (299,072)            117,759             
Compensated Absences 323,047             51,349               
Net Pension Liability (1,794,956)         4,873,219          

Change in Deferred Inflows of Resources:
Deferred Pension Liability (1,896,162)         (6,499,633)         

Total Adjustments 32,630,388        3,366,723          

Net Cash Used by Operating Activities (33,753,226)$     (58,054,535)$     

Non-cash investing, capital and financing activities:
Increase in allowance for uncollectible accounts 3,361,015$        2,960,538$        
Capital Assets acquired through Hudson County Appropriations 15,861,120        1,280,983          

See Accompanying Notes to Financial Statements (Page 2 of 2)
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HUDSON COUNTY COMMUNITY COLLEGE FOUNDATION
(A Component Unit of Hudson County Community College)
STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
JUNE 30, 2024 AND 2023

Placeholder

See Accompanying Notes to Financial Statements
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HUDSON COUNTY COMMUNITY COLLEGE FOUNDATION
(A Component Unit of Hudson County Community College)
STATEMENTS OF ACTIVITIES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2024 AND 2023

Placeholder

See Accompanying Notes to Financial Statements
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HUDSON COUNTY COMMUNITY COLLEGE 
(A Component Unit of Hudson County, New Jersey) 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2024 AND 2023 
 

 

 

NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 
Organization 
 
The Hudson County Community College (the “College”), a component unit of Hudson County, New Jersey was established as 
a unit of the New Jersey Master Plan for Higher Education and is one of nineteen New Jersey county colleges.  The College 
offers pre-baccalaureate preparation (A.S. and A.A. degrees) as well as programs and certificates which are designed to prepare 
students for employment (A.A.S. degrees). The purpose of the College is to offer high quality programs and services which are 
affordable, accessible, and community centered.  All programs and services are designed to meet the educational needs of a 
diverse community and to promote the economic, technological, cultural, social and civic development of Hudson County and 
its service areas. 
 
Reporting Entity 
 
The financial statements present the College, (a Component Unit of Hudson County, New Jersey), and it’s discretely presented 
component unit, Hudson County Community College Foundation, Inc.   
 
Component Unit 
 
The College adopted the GASB Statement, Determining Whether Certain Organizations Are Component Unit.  The GASB 
Statement establishes additional guidance on the application of existing standards for the assessment of potential component 
units in determining the financial reporting entity. 
 
The Hudson County Community College Foundation, Inc. (the “Foundation”) was organized under a separate Board of Trustees 
from the College in 2001 for the benefit of the College, faculty and students of the College, and the community.  The primary 
function of the Foundation is to obtain contributions and award scholarships.  The Foundation received a Determination Letter 
from the Internal Revenue Service concluding that it is exempt from federal income taxes under Section 501(c)(3) of the 
Internal Revenue Code.  The resources held by the Foundation can only be used by, or for the benefit of, the College.  Therefore, 
the Foundation is considered a component unit of the College and is discretely presented in the College’s financial statements. 
Complete financial statements of the Foundation can obtained from the Hudson County Community College Foundation at 70 
Sip Avenue, Jersey City, New Jersey 07306. 
 
Basis of Presentation 
 
The College’s financial statements are prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United 
States of America (GAAP).  The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is responsible for establishing GAAP 
for state and local governments, including public colleges and universities, through its pronouncements (Statements and 
Interpretations).  The College is also required to follow Accounting Principle Boards (APB) opinions and, Accounting Research 
Bulletins (ARB) of the Committee on Accounting Procedure, unless those pronouncements conflict with or contradict GASB 
pronouncements.  The College has the option to apply FASB pronouncements and APB opinions issued after that date 
November 30, 1989 and the College has chosen to do so.  The more significant accounting policies established in GAAP and 
used by the College is discussed below. 
 
The College prepares its financial statements in accordance with GASB Statement No. 35, Basic Financial Statements – and 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis for Public Colleges and Universities. 
 
Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting 
 
The financial statements are presented using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. 
The accompanying financial statements are presented using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis 
of accounting.  The economic resources measurement focus means all assets and liabilities (whether current or noncurrent) 
are included on the statement of net position and the operating statements present increases (revenues) and decreases 
(expenses) in total net position.  Under the accrual basis of accounting, revenues are generally recognized when earned and 
expenses are recognized at the time the liability is incurred, regardless of when the related cash flows take place.    
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HUDSON COUNTY COMMUNITY COLLEGE 
(A Component Unit of Hudson County, New Jersey) 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2024 AND 2023 
 

 

 

NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 
 
Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting (Continued) 
 
State and County appropriations the activities of the College are reported as a business-type activity.  Business type activities 
are required to be used for operations for which a fee is charged to external users for goods or services and the activity is 
financed with debt that is solely secured by a pledge of the net revenues. State and County appropriations are recognized as 
revenue in the year in which the appropriation is first made available for use. Grants and donations are recognized as revenue 
as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met. 
 
Use of Estimates 
 
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and 
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and 
expenses during the reporting period.   Actual results could differ from those estimates. 
 
Accounts Receivable and Allowance of Doubtful Accounts 
 
Accounts receivable primarily consist of tuition and fee charges to students and charge backs due from counties. Accounts 
receivable are recorded net of estimated uncollectible amounts. Accounts are written off when they are determined to be 
uncollectible based upon management's assessment of individual accounts. 
 
Restricted Assets 
 
Restricted assets include assets related to grants such as grants receivable and prepaid expenses paid for by restricted funds.  
When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the College’s policy to use restricted resources first, 
then unrestricted resources as they are needed. 
 
Grants Receivable  
 
Grants receivable represent amounts expended under grants awarded to the College and have been recorded as current funds 
revenues as expended. 
 
Capital Assets 
 
Capital assets include land, land improvements, buildings and equipment.  Such assets are recorded at historical cost.  The costs 
of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add value to the asset are not capitalized.  Major outlays for capital assets are 
capitalized as projects are constructed.  Capital assets are depreciated using the straight-line method.  
 
Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities 
 
Accounts payable consists or amounts due to vendors for goods and services received prior to June 30. Accrued liabilities 
consist of salaries and benefits payable. 
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NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 
 
Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources 
 
In addition to assets, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred outflows and/or 
inflows of resources. These separate financial statement elements, deferred outflows and/or inflows of resources, represent a 
consumption or acquisition of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an outflow of 
resources (expense/expenditure) and/or inflow of resources (revenue) until then. The College has one item that qualifies for 
reporting in this category which is the deferred amounts on net pension liability. Deferred amounts on net pension liability are 
reported in the statement of net position and result from: (1) differences between expected and actual experience; (2) changes 
in assumptions; (3) net difference between projected and actual investment earnings on pension plan investments; (4) changes 
in proportion and differences between employer contributions and proportionate share of contributions; and (5) contributions 
made subsequent to the measurement date. These amounts are deferred and amortized over future years. 
 
Unearned Revenue 
 
Tuition and fee revenues collected during the fiscal year which relate to the period after the fiscal year end have been recognized 
as deferred revenues.  In addition, income from federal, state and local grants is deferred and recognized over the periods to 
which the expenses relate. 
 
Non-Current Liabilities 
 
Non-Current liabilities consist primarily of deposits held in custody for others, compensated absences, financed purchase 
liability, lease payable, and net pension liability. 
 
Compensated Absences 
 
The College accounts for compensated absences (e.g., unused vacation, sick leave) as directed by Governmental Accounting 
Standards Board Statement No. 16 (GASB), “Accounting for Compensated Absences.”  A liability for compensated absences 
attributable to services already rendered and not contingent on a specific event that is outside the control of the employer and 
employee is accrued as employees earn the rights to the benefits. 
 
Pensions 
 

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to 
pensions, and pension expense of the Public Employees Retirement System (PERS) information about the fiduciary net position 
of the retirement systems sponsored and administered by the State of New Jersey and additions to/deductions from these 
retirement systems' fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by PERS.  For this 
purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when due and payable in accordance 
with the benefit terms.  Investments are reported at fair value. 
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NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 
 
Equity Classifications 
 
Equity is classified as net position and displayed in three components: 
 
Net Investment in capital assets - Consists of capital assets including restricted capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation 
and reduced by the outstanding balances of any bonds, mortgages, notes, or other borrowings that are attributable to the 
acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets. 
 
Restricted:  
 Nonexpendable – Net position subject to externally imposed stipulations that they be maintained permanently by the 
College.   There were no nonexpendable restricted net positions as of June 30, 2024 and 2023. 

 
Expendable – Net position whose use by the College is subject to externally imposed stipulations that can be fulfilled by 
actions of the College pursuant to the stipulations or that expire with the passage of time.   
 

Unrestricted net position - All other net position that do not meet the definition of “restricted” or “invested in capital assets, 
net of related debt.” 
 
Revenue Recognition  
 
Student tuition and fees are presented net of scholarships applied to student accounts, while other payments made directly to 
students are presented as scholarship expense and are recognized in the period earned.   
 
Grants and contracts revenue is comprised mainly of revenues received from grants from the State of New Jersey and the 
federal government and are recognized as the related expenses are incurred.  Amounts received from grants which have not yet 
been earned under the terms of the agreement is recorded as deferred revenue in the accompanying financial statements. 
Revenue from state and county appropriations is recognized in the fiscal year during which the State of New Jersey and Hudson 
County appropriates the funds to the College. 
 
Classification of Revenue 
 
Revenues and Expenses are those that serve the College’s principal purpose and generally result from exchange transactions, 
such as payment received for services and payment made for the purchase of goods and services.  Operating revenues include: 
(1) student tuition and fees, net of scholarship allowances; (2) sales and services of auxiliary enterprises; and (3) most federal, 
state, and local grants and contracts. Nonoperating revenues include activities that have the characteristics of non-exchange 
transactions, such as operating and capital appropriations from the state and county and net investment income. 
 
Scholarship Discounts and Allowances 
 
Students tuition and fee revenues, and certain other revenues from students, are reported net of scholarship discounts and 
allowances in the Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position. Scholarship discounts and allowances are 
the differences between the stated charge of goods and services provided by the College, and the amount that is paid by students 
and/or third parties making payments on the students’ behalf. To the extent that revenues from such programs are used to satisfy 
tuition and fees and other student charges, the College has recorded a scholarship discount and allowance. 
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NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 
 
County of Hudson Capital Support  
 
Hudson County is responsible for the issuance of Bonds and Notes for the College’s capital expenditures which are financed 
by Bond Ordinances.  Hudson County is also responsible for the payment of interest on issued debt and the retirement of such 
obligations.  Accordingly, the debt is reported in the financial statements of Hudson County and is not included in the 
accompanying financial statements of the College.  Hudson County adopts capital ordinances to fund certain capital 
expenditures of the College.  The College receives Hudson County Bond monies to fund its plant expenditures.  Unexpended 
money in the current year is generally available for capital expenditures in subsequent years. 

 
Income Taxes 
 
The College is exempt from federal income taxes under Internal Revenue Code Section 115(1). 

 
Date of Management’s Review 
 
Management has evaluated all events through November 12, 2024, the date these financial statements were available to be 
issued. 
 
Reclassifications 
 
Certain amounts have been reclassified to the financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2023 to conform to current year 
presentation. 
 
Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements to be implemented in future years 
 
The College is currently reviewing the following for applicability and potential impact on the financial statements: 

 
GASB Statement No. 101, Compensated Absences. The objective of this Statement is to better meet the information needs of 
financial statement users by updating the recognition and measurement guidance for compensated absences. That objective is 
achieved by aligning the recognition and measurement guidance under a unified model and by amending certain previously 
required disclosures.  
 
Effective Date: The requirements of this Statement are effective for periods beginning after December 15, 2023, and all 
reporting periods thereafter. Earlier application is encouraged. 
 
GASB Statement No. 102, Certain Risk Disclosures.  This Statement establishes financial reporting requirements for risks 
related to vulnerabilities due to certain concentrations or constraints.   

Effective Date: The requirements of this Statement are effective for periods beginning after June 15, 2024. 
 
NOTE 2. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS  
 
For purposes of the Statement of Cash Flows, the College considers cash and cash equivalents to be currency on hand, demand 
deposits with banks, and investment accounts and liquid investments with a maturity of three months or less when purchased. 
 

  The College has adopted a cash management plan that requires it to deposit public funds into the New Jersey State Cash 
Management Fund (“NJSCMF”) or into institutions located in New Jersey that are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance 
Corporation (“FDIC”) or in public depositories protected from loss under the provisions of the Governmental Unit Deposit 
Protection Act (“GUDPA”). GUDPA was enacted in 1970 to protect Governmental Units from loss of funds on deposit with a 
failed banking institution in New Jersey. 
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NOTE 2. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (Continued) 
 
N.J.S.A. 17:9-41 et. sec. establishes the requirements for the security of deposits of governmental units.  The statute requires 
that no governmental unit shall deposit public funds in a public depository unless such funds are secured in accordance with 
the Act.  Public depositories include Savings and Loan institutions, banks (both state and national banks) and savings banks 
the deposits of which are federally insured. All public depositories must pledge collateral, having a market value at least equal 
to five percent of the average daily balance of collected public funds, to secure the deposits of Governmental Units.  If a public 
depository fails, the collateral it has pledged, plus the collateral of all other public depositories, is available to pay the full 
amount of their deposits to the Governmental Units. 
 
All investments in the NJSCMF are governed by the regulations of the Investment Council, which prescribe specific standards 
designed to insure the quality of investments and to minimize the risks related to investments.  In all the years of the Division 
of Investment’s existence, the Division has never suffered a default of principal or interest on any short-term security held by 
it due to the bankruptcy of a securities issuer; nevertheless, the possibility always exists, and for this reason a reserve is being 
accumulated as additional protection for the “Other-than-State” participants by the New Jersey Cash Management Fund.  In 
addition to the Council regulations, the Division sets further standards for specific investments and monitors the credit of all 
eligible securities issuers on a regular basis. 
 
All cash and cash equivalents on deposit are partially insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (herein referred to 
as “FDIC”) up to $250,000 for each depository. Deposits in excess of FDIC limits are entirely insured or collateralized by a 
collateral pool maintained by public depositories as required by the Governmental Unit Deposit Protection Act.  
 
As of June 30, 2024 and 2023 the College’s deposits are summarized as follows: 
 

 
Bank deposits as of the balance sheet are required to be classified as to credit risk.  Deposits are considered to be exposed to 
custodial credit risk if they are: uncollateralized, collateralized with securities held by the pledging financial institution, or 
collateralized with securities held by the pledging financial institution’s trust department or agent but not in the name of the 
College. Custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of a bank failure, the College’s deposits may not be returned to it. 
 
Custodial Credit Risk - Custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of a bank failure, the College will not be able to recover 
deposits or collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside party.  The College does not have a deposit policy for 
custodial credit risk.  Deposits are exposed to custodial credit risk if they are not covered by depository insurance and the 
deposits are: 
 

a. Uncollateralized. 
b. Collateralized with securities held by the pledging financial institution. 
c. Collateralized with securities held by the pledging financial institution’s trust department or agent but not in the 

College’s name. 
 
Foreign Currency Risk – Foreign currency risk is the risk that changes in exchange rates will adversely affect deposits.  None 
of the College’s deposits as of June 30, 2024 and 2023 are held in foreign currency. 

 
 Under GUDPA, financial institutions are not required to pledge collateral for amounts covered by FDIC insurance.  Noninterest-

bearing transaction accounts are insured by the Dodd-Frank Deposit Insurance Provision of the FDIC.  The amount noted as 
“GUDPA Insured” above includes deposits covered by the Dodd-Frank Provision as well as GUDPA. 
 
 

2024 2023

New Jersey State Cash Management Fund 52,054,999$      60,974,284$      
Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation - Insured 250,000             250,000             
Governmental Unit Deposit Protection Act - Insured 4,256,990          4,527,755          

56,561,989$      65,752,039$      
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NOTE 3. ACCOUNTS AND GRANTS RECEIVABLE 
 
At June 30, 2024 and 2023, the College’s accounts and grants receivable were as follows: 
 

 
NOTE 4. CAPITAL ASSETS 
 
Depreciation expense was and for the years ended June 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively. 
 
The County of Hudson made available to the College the Chapter 12 Bond Program funding for the acquisition, construction, 
renovation and furnishing of capital projects in the Union City area and the Journal Square area of Jersey City for permanent 
use by the College.  The detail of capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2024 is as follows: 
 

 
 
 
 

2024 2023

Tuition and Fees 41,586,276$      35,334,161$      
Less: Allowance for Doubtful Accounts (34,119,612)       (30,758,597)       

Total Accounts Receivable 7,466,664$        4,575,564$        

Due from County of Hudson:
Capital Appropriations 6,011,225$        1,265,629$        

Grants Receivable:
Federal 2,012,979$        3,457,088$        
State 2,581,262          2,151,072          

Total Grants Receivable 4,594,241$        5,608,160$        

Balance at Balance at
June 30, 2023 Additions Retirements June 30, 2024

Capital Assets:
Non-Depreciable:

Land 12,107,648$      -$                       -$                       12,107,648$      
Construction in Progress 1,051,522          14,343,503        -                         15,395,025        

Total Non-Depreciable 13,159,170        14,343,503        -                         27,502,673        

Depreciable:
Buildings and Improvements 158,941,022      3,351,679          -                         162,292,701      
Equipment 9,809,191          384,789             -                         10,193,980        
Library Books 1,073,929          352,480             -                         1,426,409          

Total Depreciable at Historical Cost 169,824,142      4,088,948          -                         173,913,090      

Less: Accumulated Depreciation:
Buildings and Improvements (48,768,925)       (4,661,221)         -                         (53,430,146)       
Equipment (5,988,152)         (1,297,381)         -                         (7,285,533)         
Library Books (568,556)            (182,974)            -                         (751,530)            

Total Accumulated Depreciation (55,325,633)       (6,141,576)         -                         (61,467,209)       

Depreciable Capital Assets, Net 114,498,509      (2,052,628)         -                         112,445,881      

Capital Assets, Net 127,657,679$    12,290,875$      -$                       139,948,554$    
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NOTE 4. CAPITAL ASSETS (Continued) 
 
The detail of capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2023 is as follows: 

 

 
NOTE 5. RIGHT-OF-USE LEASED ASSETS 
 
The College has recorded a lease liability and an intangible right-to-use asset for the year ending June 30, 2023.  Amortization 
expense was $199,684 for the years ended June 30, 2024 and 2023.  The detail of right-of-use leased assets activity for the 
years ended June 30, 2024 and 2023 is as follows: 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Balance at Balance at
June 30, 2022 Additions Retirements June 30, 2023

Capital Assets:
Non-Depreciable:

Land 12,107,648$      -$                       -$                       12,107,648$      
Construction in Progress 2,903,702          (1,852,180)         -                         1,051,522          

Total Non-Depreciable 15,011,350        (1,852,180)         -                         13,159,170        

Depreciable:
Buildings and Improvements 155,784,040      3,156,982          -                         158,941,022      
Equipment 9,195,393          613,798             -                         9,809,191          
Library Books 783,028             290,901             -                         1,073,929          

Total Depreciable at Historical Cost 165,762,461      4,061,681          -                         169,824,142      

Less: Accumulated Depreciation:
Buildings and Improvements (44,243,362)       (4,525,563)         -                         (48,768,925)       
Equipment (4,742,259)         (1,245,893)         -                         (5,988,152)         
Library Books (436,440)            (132,116)            -                         (568,556)            

Total Accumulated Depreciation (49,422,061)       (5,903,572)         -                         (55,325,633)       

Depreciable Capital Assets, Net 116,340,400      (1,841,891)         -                         114,498,509      

Capital Assets, Net 131,351,750$    (3,694,071)$       -$                       127,657,679$    

Balance at Balance at
June 30, 2023 Additions Retirements June 30, 2024

Right-of-Use Leased Assets:
Office Space 815,377$           -$                       -$                       815,377$           

Total Right-of-Use Leased Assets 815,377             -                         -                         815,377             

Less: Accumulated Amortization
Office Space (199,684)            (199,684)            -                         (399,368)            

Total Accumulated Amortization (199,684)            (199,684)            (399,368)            

Right-of-Use Leased Assets, Net 615,693$           (199,684)$          -$                       416,009$           
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NOTE 5. RIGHT-OF-USE LEASED ASSETS (Continued) 
 

 
NOTE 6. UNEARNED REVENUES 
 
At June 30, 2024 and 2023, the College’s unearned revenues were as follows: 
 

 
NOTE 7. NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 
 
During the years ended June 30, 2024 and 2023, the following changes occurred in College’s non-current liabilities: 

 

 
 

Balance at Balance at
June 30, 2022 Additions Retirements June 30, 2023

Right-of-Use Leased Assets:
Office Space -$                       815,377$           -$                       815,377$           

Total Right-of-Use Leased Assets -                         815,377             -                         815,377             

Less: Accumulated Amortization
Office Space -                         (199,684)            -                         (199,684)            

Total Accumulated Amortization -                         (199,684)            (199,684)            

Right-of-Use Leased Assets, Net -$                       615,693$           -$                       615,693$           

2024 2023

Unearned Grant Revenue:
Federal 576,815$           171,320$           
State 2,352,133          1,836,969          
Local 308,476             337,694             

Total Unearned Grant Revenue 3,237,424$        2,345,983$        

Balance at Balance at Current Noncurrent
June 30, 2023 Additions Deductions June 30, 2024 Portion Portion

Non-Current Liabilities:
Deposits Held in Custody

for Others 562,639$           1,119,250$        1,469,004$        212,885$           -$                       212,885$           
Compensated Absences 2,855,077          329,604             6,557                 3,178,124          1,877,426          1,300,698          
Financed Purchase Liability 732,435             -                         94,119               638,316             88,616               549,700             
Lease Liability 643,584             -                         189,039             454,545             207,539             247,006             
Net Pension Liability 20,302,011        -                         1,794,956          18,507,055        -                         18,507,055        

Total Non-Current Liabilities 25,095,746$      1,448,854$        3,553,675$        22,990,925$      2,173,581$        20,817,344$      

Balance at Balance at Current Noncurrent
June 30, 2022 Additions Deductions June 30, 2023 Portion Portion

Non-Current Liabilities:
Deposits Held in Custody

for Others 721,209$           989,160$           1,147,730$        562,639$           -$                       562,639$           
Compensated Absences 2,803,728          99,659               48,310               2,855,077          1,547,822          1,307,255          
Financed Purchase Liability 826,554             -                         94,119               732,435             85,274               647,161             
Lease Liability -                         815,377             171,793             643,584             189,040             454,544             
Net Pension Liability 15,428,792        4,873,219          -                         20,302,011        -                         20,302,011        

Total Non-Current Liabilities 19,780,283$      6,777,415$        1,461,952$        25,095,746$      1,822,136$        23,273,610$      
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NOTE 7. NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES (Continued) 
 
Compensated Absences  
 
College’s employees are granted varying amounts of vacation and sick leave in accordance with the College’s personnel policy.  
Upon termination, employees are paid for accrued vacation.  The College’s policy permits employees to accumulate unused 
sick leave and carry forward the full amount to subsequent years.  Upon retirement, employees shall be paid by the College for 
the unused sick leave in accordance with the College’s agreements with the various employee unions.  The College policies 
allow for payments of accumulated sick time, not to exceed $15,000, to employees with ten years of service or more. In the 
Statement of Net Position, the liabilities are reported in two components – current (amounts due within one year) and noncurrent 
(amounts due in more than one year).  The College accrues the liability for these compensated absences in the periods that they 
are earned. The current portion of this liability is based on historical trends. 
 
Financed Purchase Liability 
 
On January 1, 2020, the College entered into a financed purchase agreement with the County of Hudson for space owned by 
the County at the College’s North Hudson Campus over a twelve-year period ending December 31, 2031, at which time the 
County of Hudson will transfer ownership of space to the College. The financed purchase payments will range from $84,186 
to $95,985 from 2020 to 2031. The following is schedule of the future minimum payments under the financed purchase as of 
June 30, 2024: 

 

 
Lease Liability  
 
The College adopted GASB Statement No. 87 effective July 1, 2021, however, management had determined that there were no 
material leases that required recording a lease liability and an intangible right-to-use asset for the year ending June 30, 2022.  
However, during 2023 the College extended an existing lease agreement that management has determined to be material.  The 
College has recorded a lease liability and an intangible right-to-use asset for the year ending June 30, 2023.  A restatement of 
the financial statements for all prior periods presented was not practical and the cumulative effect of applying this Statement 
retroactively was not calculated to warrant a restatement of beginning net position. 
 
During the year ending June 30, 2023, the College extended an existing lease agreement.   In accordance with GASB Statement 
No. 87, the College recorded a lease liability and an intangible right-to-use asset as of July 1, 2022, based on the present value 
of expected payments over the term of the lease. The expected payments are discounted using the interest rate charged on the 
lease, if applicable, and are otherwise discounted using the College’s incremental borrowing rate. Variable payments are 
excluded from the valuation unless they are fixed in substance. The College does not have any leases subject to residual value 
guarantee. The intangible right of use assets are amortized over the shorter of the lease term of the underlying assets useful life. 
The intangible right of use assets total $975,953 and accumulated amortization totaled $383,982, respectively. See note 5 on 
right-of-use leased assets for more information on leased assets by major classes of underlying assets on June 30, 2023.  
 
 
 
 
 

Year Ending
June 30, Amount

2025 88,616$             
2026 87,176               
2027 86,489               
2028 86,212               
2029 85,611               

2030 - 2032 204,212             

638,316$           
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NOTE 7. NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES (Continued) 
 
Lease Liability (Continued) 
 
 The general terms lease arrangements are as follows: 
 

 
 
The following is a schedule of the future minimum payments under the noncancellable lease at June 30, 2024: 
 

 
NOTE 8. CONTRIBUTED FACILITIES 
 
On June 1, 2022, the College entered into lease agreement with the Jersey City Redevelopment Agency for use of properties 
located at 68-74 Sip Avenue, Jersey City and 164-168 Sip Avenue, Jersey City for three years beginning June 1, 2022 and 
ending June 1, 2025. The College will pay a fixed rental amount of $1 per year which is less than the amount that would be 
charged for similar properties that are rented under similar terms. Using publicly available commercial real estate rental listings, 
the College estimated the rental payments to be $1,276,496 per year at market price. Donated facilities revenue and expense 
for the year ended June 30, 2024 and 2023 were $1,276,496 and $1,276,496, respectively. 
 
The College determined that this contract does not meet the definition of lease per GASB No. 87 since the lease only applies 
to exchange or exchange-like transaction. This right to use of property does not meet the description of exchange or exchange-
like transaction since each party does not receive or give up essentially equal value. 
 
NOTE 9. RETIREMENT SYSTEMS 
 
All required employees of the College are covered by either the State of New Jersey Public Employees’ Retirement System 
(PERS) or the Alternate Benefit Program (ABP), which presently makes contributions to Teachers Insurance and Annuity 
Association – College Retirement Equities Fund (TIAA/CREF), Aetna Life Insurance Company, Lincoln Life Insurance 
Company, Metropolitan Life Insurance Company, Travelers Life Insurance Company and VALIC. PERS is a cost-sharing, 
multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan administered by the State of New Jersey.  The ABP alternatives are 
administered by a separate Board of Trustees.  Generally, all employees, except certain part-time employees, participate in one 
of these plans. 
 
The PERS was established in January 1955 under provisions of N.J.S.A. 43:15A and provides coverage to substantially all full-
time employees of the College provided the employee is not a member of another State administered retirement system.   
Membership is mandatory for such employees and vesting occurs after 8 to 10 years of service for pension benefits and 25 
years for post-retirement health care coverage. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Number of Average Lease Average Annual
Lease Type Contracts Lessors Rate Terms Lease Payment

Office Building 1 26 Journal Square Owner, LLC 6.00%  08/01/2020 - 07/31/2026 222,941$             

Year Ending
June 30, Principal Interest Total

2025 207,539$           21,642$             229,181$           
2026 227,386             8,650                 236,036             
2027 19,620               98                      19,718               

454,545$           30,390$             484,935$           
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NOTE 9. RETIREMENT SYSTEMS (Continued) 
 
The following represents the membership tiers for PERS: 

 
Tier Definition 
  

1 Members who were enrolled prior to July 1, 2007 
2 Employees eligible for enrollment after June 30, 2007 but before November 2, 2008 
3 Employees eligible for enrollment after November 1, 2008 but before May 22, 2010 
4 Employees eligible for enrollment after May 21, 2010 but before June 28, 2011 
5 Employees eligible for enrollment after June 27, 2011 

 
Service retirement benefits of 1/55th of final average salary for each year of service credit is available to tiers 1 and 2 members 
upon reaching age 60 and to tier 3 members upon reaching age 62. Service retirement benefits of 1/60th of final average 
salary for each year of service credit is available to tier 4 members upon reaching age 62, tiers 5 members upon reaching 65. 
Early retirement benefits are available to tier 1 and 2 members before reaching age 60, tiers 3 and 4 with 25 years or more of 
service credit before age 62 and tier 5 with 30 or more years of service credit before age 65. Benefits are reduced by a fraction 
of a percent for each month that a member retires prior to the retirement age of their respective tier. Tier 1 members can 
receive an unreduced benefit from age 55 to age 60 if they have at least 25 years of service. Deferred retirement is available 
to members who have at least 10 years of service credit and have not reached the service retirement age for their respective 
tiers. 
 
According to state law, all obligations of PERS will be assumed by the State of New Jersey should the PERS be terminated. 
 
The State of New Jersey, Department of Treasury, Division of Pensions and Benefits, issues publicly available financial reports 
that include the financial statements and required supplementary information of the PERS.   The financial reports may be 
accessed via the New Jersey Division of Pensions and Benefits website at www.state.nj.us/treasury/pensions. 
 
The contribution policy is set by N.J.S.A. 43:15A and requires contributions by active members and contributing employers.  
Pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 78, P.L. 2011, members contribute at a rate of 7.5%.  Employers’ contribution amounts 
are based on an actuarially determined rate. The annual employer contributions include funding for basic retirement allowances 
and non-contributory death benefits. 
 
Pursuant to the provision of Chapter 78, P.L. 2011, COLA increases were suspended for all current and future retirees of all 
retirement systems. 
 
The College’s and employees’ contributions to PERS for the past three years were as follows: 
 

 
Chapter 78, P.L. 2011, effective June 28, 2011, established employee contribution requirements towards the cost of employer 
provided health benefit coverage. Employees are required to contribute a certain percentage of the cost of coverage. The rate 
of contribution is determined based on the employee’s annual salary and the selected level of coverage. 
 
 
 
 

Employer Contribution
Gross Percentage

Year Ended College of Covered Employee Pensionable
June 30, Contribution Payroll Contributions Wages

2024 1,707,715$        14.18% 921,555$           12,046,466$      
2023 1,696,453          14.41% 900,395             11,769,874        
2022 1,525,253          13.26% 879,722             11,499,633        
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NOTE 9. RETIREMENT SYSTEMS (Continued) 
 
Under chapter 78, certain future retirees eligible for employer-paid health care coverage at retirement will also be required 
to pay a percentage of the cost of their medical coverage determined on the basis of their annual retirement benefit. 
 
GASB Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pension and GASB Statement No. 71, Pension Transition 
for Contributions Made Subsequent to Measurement Date – an amendment of GASB No. 68 require participating employers 
in pension plans to recognize their proportionate share of their collective net pension liability, collective deferred outflows 
of resources, collective deferred inflows of resources and collective pension expense excluding that attributable to employer-
paid member contributions. 
 
At June 30, 2024 and 2023, the College’s proportionate share of net pension liability for PERS was $18,507,055 and 
$20,302,011, respectively. 
 
The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2023, and the total pension liability used to calculate the net pension 
liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date.  The College’s proportion of the net pension liability was 
based on a projection of the College’s long-term share of contributions to the pension plan relative to the projected contributions 
of all participating entities, actuarially determined.  At June 30, 2023, the College’s proportion was 0.1278%, which was a 
decrease of 0.0067% from its proportion measured as of June 30, 2022.   
 
For the years ended June 30, 2024 and 2023, the College recognized PERS pension (benefit) expense of $651,420  and 
($324,961) respectively.   
 
At June 30, 2024 and 2023, the College reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to 
pensions from the following sources: 
 

 
College contributions subsequent to the measurement date for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2024 and 2023 in the amounts of 
$1,707,715 and $1,696,453 are recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability subsequent to their corresponding fiscal 
years ended.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

2024 2023
Deferred Deferred Deferred Deferred

Outflows of Inflows of Outflows of Inflows of
Resources Resources Resources Resources

Differences between expected and actual experience 101,300$           -$                       17,312$             -$                       

Changes in assumptions -                         1,080,951          -                         2,977,113          
Net differences between projected and actual investment 

earnings on pension plan investments 85,227               -                         840,282             -                         
Changes in proportion 878,648             -                         2,842,404          -                         

Total Deferred Outflows and Inflows or resources
before College contributions before measurement date 1,065,175          1,080,951          3,699,998          2,977,113          

College contributions subsequent to measurement date 1,707,715          -                     1,696,453          -                     

Total 2,772,890$        1,080,951$        5,396,451$        2,977,113$        
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NOTE 9. RETIREMENT SYSTEMS (Continued) 
 
Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be 
recognized in pension expense as follows: 
 

 
Actuarial Assumptions 
 
The total pension liability for the June 30, 2024 measurement date was determined by an actuarial valuation as of July 1, 2022, 
which was rolled forward to June 30, 2023. The total pension liability for the June 30, 2023 measurement date was determined 
by an actuarial valuation as of July 1, 2021, which was rolled forward to June 30, 2022.   
 
These actuarial valuations used the following actuarial assumptions applied to all periods in the measurement.   
 

 
Pre-retirement mortality rates were based on the Pub-2010 General Below-Median Income Employee mortality table with an 
82.2% adjustment for males and 101.4% adjustment for females, and with future improvement from the base year of 2010 on 
a generational basis. Post-retirement mortality rates were based on the Pub-2010 General Below-Median Income Healthy 
Retiree mortality table with a 91.4% adjustment for males and 99.7% adjustment for females, and with future improvement 
from the base year of 2010 on a generational basis. Disability retirement rates used to value disabled retirees were based on the 
Pub-2010 Non-Safety Disabled Retiree mortality table with a 127.7% adjustment for males and 117.2% adjustment for females, 
and with future improvement from the base year of 2010 on a generational basis. Mortality improvement is based on Scale MP-
2021. 
 
The actuarial assumptions used in the July 1, 2023 and 2022 valuations were based on the results of an actuarial experience 
study for the period July 1, 2018 to June 30, 2021.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Year Ended
June 30, Amount

2025 (333,111)$          
2026 (82,648)              
2027 766,928             
2028 (351,533)            
2029 (15,412)              

(15,776)$            

2024 2023

Inflation Rate:
Price 2.75% 2.75%
Wage 3.25% 3.25%

Salary increaes 2.75 - 6.55% 2.75 - 6.55%
based on years based on years

of service of service

Investment rate of return 7.00% 7.00%
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NOTE 9. RETIREMENT SYSTEMS (Continued) 
 
Actuarial Assumptions (Continued) 
 
In accordance with State statute, the long-term expected rate of return on plan investments (7.00% at June 30, 2023 and 2022) 
is determined by the State Treasurer, after consultation with the Directors of the Division of Investment and Division of 
Pensions and Benefits, the board of trustees and the actuaries. The long-term expected rate of return was determined using a 
building block method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of pension 
plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These ranges are combined to produce the 
long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage 
and by adding expected inflation.   
 
Best estimates of arithmetic rates of return for each major asset class included in PERS’s target asset allocation as of June 30, 
2024 and 2023 are summarized in the following table: 

 
Discount Rate 
 
The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.00% as of June 30, 2023 and 2022. The projection of cash 
flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from plan members will be made at the current member 
contribution rates and that contributions from employers and the non-employer contributing entity will be based on 100% of 
the actuarially determined contributions for the State employer and 100% of actuarially determined contributions for the local 
employers.  Based on those assumptions, the plan’s fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all projected 
future benefit payments of current plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on plan investments was 
applied to all projected benefit payments in determining the total pension liability. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Long-Term Long-Term
Target Expected Real Target Expected Real

Asset Class Allocation Rate of Return Allocation Rate of Return

U.S. Equity 28.00% 8.98% 27.00% 8.12%
Non U.S. Developed Market Equity 12.75% 9.22% 13.50% 8.38%
International Small Cap Equity 1.25% 9.22% 0.00% 0.00%
Emerging Market Equity 5.50% 11.13% 5.50% 10.33%
Private Equity 13.00% 12.50% 13.00% 11.80%
Real Estate 8.00% 8.58% 3.00% 7.60%
Real Assets 3.00% 8.40% 8.00% 11.19%
High Yield 4.50% 6.97% 4.00% 4.95%
Private Credit 8.00% 9.20% 8.00% 8.10%
Investment Grade Credit 7.00% 5.19% 7.00% 3.38%
Cash Equivalents 2.00% 3.31% 4.00% 1.75%
U.S. Treasuries 4.00% 3.31% 4.00% 1.75%
Risk Mitigation Strategies 3.00% 6.21% 3.00% 4.91%

2024 2023
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NOTE 9. RETIREMENT SYSTEMS (Continued) 
 
Sensitivity of the College’s proportionate share of the net pension liability to changes in the discount rate.   
 
The following presents the College’s proportionate share of the net pension liability of the as of June 30, 2024 and 2023 (June 
30, 2023 and 2022, respectively Measurement Date), calculated using the discount rate as disclosed above as well as what the 
collective net pension liability would be if it was calculated using a discount rate that is 1% lower or 1% higher than the current 
rate: 

 
Pension Plan fiduciary net position 
 
Detailed information about the pension plans’ fiduciary net position are available in the separately issued financial reports. 
These reports may be accessed via the New Jersey Division of Pension and Benefits website at 
www.state.nj.us/treasury/pensions. 
 
Payable to the pension plan 
 
At June 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively, the College reported accounts payable to the PERS of $1,707,715 and $1,696,453 for 
the required actuarially determined contribution to PERS for the years ended. 
 
Alternate Benefit Program Information (ABP) 
 
ABP provides the choice of seven investment carriers all of which are privately operated defined contribution retirement plans.  
The College assumes no liability for ABP members other than payment of contributions.  ABP provides retirement and death 
benefits for, or on behalf of, those full-time professional employees and faculty members electing to participate in this optional 
retirement program.  Participation eligibility as well as contributory and non-contributory requirements are established by the 
State of New Jersey Retirement and Social Security Law. 
 
Employer contributions to ABP are paid by the State of New Jersey; however, such contributions have not been reflected as 
revenue and expense in the accompanying financial statements. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

1% Current 1%
Decrease Discount Rate Increase
(6.00%) (7.00%) (8.00%)

College's proportionate share of
PERS net pension liability 24,092,248$        18,507,055$         13,753,317$          

2024

1% Current 1%
Decrease Discount Rate Increase
(6.00%) (7.00%) (8.00%)

College's proportionate share of
PERS net pension liability 26,082,137$        20,302,011$         15,382,891$          

2023
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NOTE 9. RETIREMENT SYSTEMS (Continued) 
 
Alternate Benefit Program Information (ABP) (Continued) 
 
Benefits are determined by the amount of individual accumulations and the retirement income option selected.  All benefits 
vest after the completion of one year of service.  Individually owned annuity contracts that provide for full ownership of 
retirement and survivor benefits are purchased at the time of vesting.  Participating College employees contribute 5% of salary 
and may contribute a voluntary additional contribution up to the maximum federal statutory limit, on a pre-tax basis.  Employer 
contributions are 8%.  The State of New Jersey reimburses the College a portion of employer contributions for certain classified 
positions relating to direct student education.  The College’s and employees’ contributions to ABP for the past three years were 
as follows: 
 

 
NOTE 10. POST-RETIREMENT MEDICAL BENEFITS 
 
The State of New Jersey sponsors and administers the post-retirement health benefit program plan for county colleges.   
 
State Health Benefit Local Education Retired Employees Plan 
 
The State Health Benefit Local Education Retired Employees Plan (Local Education Retired Plan) is a multiple-employer 
defined benefit other post-employment benefit (OPEB) plan that is administered by the State on a pay-as-you-go basis.  
Accordingly, no assets are accumulated in a qualifying trust that meets the criteria in paragraph 4 of GASB Statement No 75, 
Accounting and Financial Reporting for the Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions. The Local Education Retired Plan 
provides medical, prescription drug, and Medicare Part B reimbursement to retirees and the covered dependents of local 
education employees. The State also offers dental care to retirees, however, since dental benefits are completely paid for by the 
retirees, there is no OPEB liability for these benefits. 
 
The employer contributions for the participating local education employers are legally required to be funded by the State of 
New Jersey in accordance with N.J.S.A. 52:14-17.32f. According to N.J.S.A. 52:14-17.32f, the State provides employer-paid 
coverage to employees who retired from a board of education or county college with 25 years or more of service credit in, or 
retires on a disability pension from one or more of the following plans: the Teachers’ Pension and Annuit Fund (TPAF), the 
Public Employees’ Retirement System (PERS), the Police and Firemen Retirement System (PFRS), or the Alternate Benefit 
Program (ABP). Pursuant to Chapter 78, P.L. 2011, future retirees eligible for postemployment medical coverage who have 
less than 20 years of creditable service on June 28, 2011 will be required to pay a percentage of the cost of their health care 
coverage in retirement provided they retire with 25 or more years of pension service credit. The percentage of the premium for 
which the retiree will be responsible will be determined based on the retiree’s annual retirement benefit and level of coverage. 
 
For additional information about the State Health Benefit Local Education Retired Education Plan, please refer to the Division’s 
Annual Comprehensive Financial Report (ACFR) which can be found at https://www.state.nj.us/treasury/pensions/gasb-
notices-opeb.shtml. 
 
Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting 
 
The financial statements of the post-retirement health benefit plans are prepared in accordance with U.S. generally accepted 
accounting principles as applicable to governmental organizations.  In doing so, the Division adheres to reporting requirements 
established by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB). 

Gross
Year Ended College State Employee Pensionable

June 30, Paid Reimbursed Contributions Salaries

2024 1,202,860$        1,202,860$        751,787$           15,035,744$      
2023 1,173,521          1,173,521          733,451             14,669,018        
2022 1,144,899          1,144,899          715,562             14,311,242        

Employer Contributions
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NOTE 10. POST-RETIREMENT MEDICAL BENEFITS (Continued) 
 
Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting (Continued) 
 
The accrual basis of accounting is used for measuring financial position and changes in net position of the post-employment 
health benefit plans.  Under this method, contributions are recorded in the accounting period in which they are legally due from 
the employer or plan member, and deductions are recorded at the time the liabilities are due and payable in accordance with 
terms of each plan.  The accounts of the Division are organized and operated on the basis of funds.  All funds are accounted 
for using economic resources measurement focus.   
 
Investment Valuation 
 
Investments are reported at fair value.  Investments that do not have an established market are reported at estimated fair value.  
Fair value is the amount at which a financial instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties, 
other than in a forced or liquidation sale.  
 
Collective Net OPEB Liability 
 
The collective net OPEB liability of the State, as the non-employer contributing entity, of the plan at June 30, 2023 and 2022 
was  $52.3 and $50.6 billion, respectively, and the plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total OPEB liability is zero 
percent. 
 
The total OPEB liabilities were determined based on actuarial valuations as of June 30, 2022 and 2021 which were rolled 
forward to June 30, 2023 and 2022, respectively. 
 
Actuarial Methods and Assumptions 
 
In the June 30, 2023 and 2022 OPEB actuarial valuations, the actuarial assumptions and methods used in these valuations were 
described in the Actuarial Assumptions and Methods section of the Actuary's report and are included here in this note to the 
financial statements. The Plan selected economic and demographic assumptions and prescribed them for use for purposes of 
compliance with GASB Statement No. 75. The Actuary provided guidance with respect to these assumptions, and it is their 
belief that the assumptions represent reasonable expectations of anticipated plan experience. 
 
Post-Retirement Medical Benefits Contributions 
 
The funding policy of the OPEB plan is pay as you go basis; therefore, there is no prefunding of the liability. Contributions to 
pay for the health benefit premiums of participating employees in the OPEB plan are made by the State, as a non-employer 
contributing entity, under a special funding situation in accordance with State statutes as previously disclosed.  The State as a 
non-employer contributing entity made contributions of $1.33 and $1.23 billion to the OPEB plan in fiscal years 2023 and 
2022, respectively. 
 
The State sets the contribution rate based on a pay as you go basis and not on the annual required contribution of the employers 
(ARC), an amount actuarially determined in accordance with the parameters of GASB Statement No. 45.  The ARC represents 
a level of funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is projected to cover normal cost each year and amortize any unfunded 
actuarial liabilities (or funding excess) of the plan over a period not to exceed thirty years.  The State's contributions to the 
State Health Benefits Program Fund for PERS and ABP retirees' post-retirement benefits on behalf of the College for the years 
ended June 30, 2023 and 2022 were , $1,378,942, and $1,195,435, respectively, which equaled the required contributions for 
each year.  The State's contributions to the State Health Benefits Program Fund for PERS retirees' post-retirement benefits on 
behalf of the College was not determined or made available by the State of New Jersey.  The on-behalf OPEB contributions 
are recognized in the governmental fund financial statements (modified accrual basis) as both a revenue and expenditure in 
accordance with GASB Statement No. 85. 
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NOTE 10. POST-RETIREMENT MEDICAL BENEFITS (Continued) 
 
OPEB Liabilities, OPEB Expenses and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to 
OPEB 
 
GASB Statement No. 75 requires participating employers in the State Health Benefits Program Fund – Local Education Retired 
to recognize their proportionate share of the collective OPEB liability, collective deferred outflows or resources, collective 
deferred inflows of resources and collective OPEB expense excluding the attributable to retiree-paid member contributions.  
The non-employer allocation percentages presented are based on the ratio of the State’s contributions made as a non-employer 
toward the actuarially determined contribution amount to total contributions to the plan during the fiscal years ended June 30, 
2022 and 2021.  Non-employer allocation percentages have been rounded for presentation purposes.   
 
In accordance with GASB No. 75, the District is not required to recognize an OPEB liability for the post-employment health 
benefit plan. The State of New Jersey, as a non-employer contributing entity, is the only entity that has a legal obligation to 
make employer contributions to the plan on behalf of the College. Accordingly, the College's proportionate share percentage 
determined under Statement No. 75 is zero percent and the State's proportionate share is 100% of the OPEB liability, attributable 
to the College. Therefore, in addition, the College does not recognize any portion of the collective deferred outflows of 
resources and deferred inflows of resources related to the plan. 
 
For the fiscal years ended June 30, 2024 and 2023, the College recognized OPEB expense of $2,281,129 and $2,255,109, 
respectively. These amounts have been included as revenue and expense in the financial statements in accordance with GASB 
No. 75. 
 
At June 30, 2024 and 2023 the State's proportionate share of the OPEB liability attributable to the College is $50,228,092 and 
$45,540,165, respectively.  The non-employer allocation percentages are based on the ratio of the State's proportionate share 
of the OPEB liability attributable to the College at June 30, 2023 and 2022 to the total OPEB liability of the State Health Benefit 
Program Fund – Local Education Retired Employees Plan at June 30, 2022 and 2021, respectively.  At June 2023, the State’s 
share of the OPEB liability attributable to the College was 0.0959% which was an increase of 0.0060% from its proportion 
measured as of June 30, 2022 of 0.0899%.  At June 2022, the State’s share of the OPEB liability attributable to the College 
was 0.0899% which was an increase of 0.0006% from its proportion measured as of June 30, 2021 of 0.0893%. 
 
Actuarial Assumptions and Other Inputs 
 
The OPEB liability for the June 30, 2023, measurement date was determined by an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2022, 
which was rolled forward to June 30, 2023.  The OPEB liability for the June 30, 2022, measurement date was determined by 
an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2021, which was rolled forward to June 30, 2022.  The actuarial assumptions vary for each 
plan member depending on the pension plan the member is enrolled in.  This actuarial valuation used the following actuarial 
assumptions, applied to all periods in the measurement. 
 

 
 

 
 

2024 2023

Inflation Rate:
Price 2.75% 2.75%
Wage 3.25% 3.25%

Salary increaes 2.75 - 6.55% 2.75 - 6.55%
based on years based on years

of service of service

Investment rate of return 7.00% 7.00%
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NOTE 10. POST-RETIREMENT MEDICAL BENEFITS (Continued) 
 
OPEB Liabilities, OPEB Expenses and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to 
OPEB (Continued) 
 
Preretirement mortality rates were based on the Pub-2010 Healthy “Teachers” (TPAF/ABP), “General” (PERS), and “Safety” 
(PFRS) classification headcount-weighted mortality table with fully generational mortality improvement projections from the 
central year using Scale MP-2021. Postretirement mortality rates were based on the Pub-2010 “General” classification 
headcount-weighted mortality table with fully generational mortality improvement projections from the central year using Scale 
MP-2021.  
 
The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2022 and 2021 valuations were based on the results of an actuarial experience 
study for the period July 1, 2018 to June 30, 2021. 
 
100% of all retirees who currently have healthcare coverage are assumed to continue with that coverage.  100% of active 
members are considered to participate in the Plan upon retirement, having a coverage blend of 95% and 5% in PPO and HMO, 
respectively. 
 
Health Care Trend Assumptions 
 
For pre-Medicare medical benefits, the trend rate is initially 6.25% and decreases to a 4.5% long-term trend rate after seven 
years. For post-65 medical benefits, the actual fully-insured Medicare Advantage trend rate for fiscal year 2022 through 2023 
are reflected. The assumed post-65 medical trend is 4.5% for all future years. For prescription drug benefits, the initial trend 
rate is 8.00% and decreases to a 4.5% long-term trend rate after eight years. For the Medicare Part B reimbursement, the trend 
rate is 5.0%. 
 
Discount Rate 
 
The discount rate for June 30, 2023 was 3.65% and for June 30, 2022 was 3.54%.  This represents the municipal bond return 
rate as chosen by the Division. The source is the Bond Buyer Go 20-Bond Municipal Bond Index, which includes tax-exempt 
general obligation municipal bonds with an average rating of AA/Aa or higher. As the long-term rate of return is less than the 
municipal bond rate, it is not considered in the calculation of the discount rate, rather the discount rate is set at the municipal 
bond rate. 
 
The change in the State’s proportionate share of the OPEB liability attributable to the College for the fiscal years ended June 
30, 2024 and 2023 (measurement dates June 30, 2023 and 2022, respectively) are as follows: 

 

 
 

2024 2023

Balance, July 1 measurement date 45,540,165$      53,588,515$      

Changes recognized for the fiscal year:
Service cost 2,939,841          3,657,831          
Interest on the total OPEB liability 1,768,972          1,206,865          
Changes of benefit terms -                         -                         
Changes in assumptions 101,239             (12,216,558)       
Difference between expected 

actual experience 1,211,485          460,597             
Gross benefit payments (1,378,942)         (1,195,435)         
Contributions from the member 45,332               38,350               

Net changes 4,687,927          (8,048,350)         

Balance, June 30, measurement date 50,228,092$      45,540,165$      
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NOTE 10. POST-RETIREMENT MEDICAL BENEFITS (Continued) 
 
OPEB Liabilities, OPEB Expenses and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to 
OPEB (Continued) 
 
The change in the total OPEB liability was based on the State’s proportionate share of the OPEB liability attributable to the 
College at June 30, 2023 and 2022. A change in the total OPEB liability specific to the State’s proportionate share of the OPEB 
liability attributable to the College for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2023 and 2022 were not provided by the pension system. 
 
Sensitivity of OPEB Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate 
 
The following presents the State’s proportionate share of the OPEB liability attributable to the College as of June 30, 2024 and 
2023, calculated using the discount rate disclosed above, as well as what the State’s proportionate share of the OPEB liability 
attributable to the College would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1% point lower or 1% point higher than 
the current rate: 

 
 

 
 

Sensitivity of total OPEB liability to changes in the healthcare cost trend rates 
 
The following presents the State’s proportionate share of the OPEB liability attributable to the College as of June 30, 2024 and 
2023, calculated using the healthcare trend rate as disclosed above as well as what the State’s proportionate share of the OPEB 
liability attributable to the College would be if it was calculated using a healthcare trend rate that is 1% point lower or 1% point 
higher than the current rate: 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

2024
At 1% At Current At 1%

Decrease Discount Rate Increase
(2.65%) (3.65%) (4.65%)

State's Proportionate Share of the OPEB
Liability Attributable to the College 58,883,815$        50,228,092$          43,278,551$         

2023
At 1% At Current At 1%

Decrease Discount Rate Increase
(2.54%) (3.54%) (4.54%)

State's Proportionate Share of the OPEB
Liability Attributable to the College 53,527,674$        45,540,165$          39,138,576$         

2024
Healthcare Cost

1 % Decrease Trend Rate 1% Increase

State's Proportionate Share of the OPEB
Liability Attributable to the College 41,697,060$        50,228,092$          61,390,969$         

2023
Healthcare Cost

1 % Decrease Trend Rate 1% Increase

State's Proportionate Share of the OPEB
Liability Attributable to the College 37,641,730$        45,540,165$          55,915,239$         
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HUDSON COUNTY COMMUNITY COLLEGE 
(A Component Unit of Hudson County, New Jersey) 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2024 AND 2023 
 

 

 

NOTE 10. POST-RETIREMENT MEDICAL BENEFITS (Continued) 
 
OPEB Liabilities, OPEB Expenses and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to 
OPEB (Continued) 
 
The sensitivity analyses were based on the State's proportionate share of the OPEB liability attributable to the College at June 
30, 2023 and 2022. Sensitivity analyses specific to the State's proportionate share of the OPEB liability attributable to the 
College at June 30, 2023 and 2022 were not provided by the pension system. 
 
NOTE 11. DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNIT 
 
Organization of the Foundation 
 
The Hudson County Community College Foundation (the “Foundation”) is a discretely presented component unit of the 
College.  The Foundation is a private not-for-profit organization that reports under FASB standards.  As such, certain revenue 
recognition criteria and presentation features are different from GASB revenue recognition criteria and presentation features 
which taken as a whole are not material to the College’s financial statements of the College.  No modifications have been made 
to the Foundation’s financial information in the College’s financial reporting entity for these differences. 
 
During the years ended June 30, 2024 and 2023, the Foundation distributed $298,110 and $123,605 respectively, to the College 
for scholarships.  Complete financial statements for the Foundation can be obtained from the Finance Department of the 
College, Jersey City, New Jersey. 
 
Summary of the Foundation’s Significant Accounting Policies 
 
Basis of Accounting 
 
The organization prepares its financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, which involves 
the application of accrual accounting; consequently, revenues and gains are recognized when earned, and expenses and losses 
are recognized when incurred. 
 
Net Asset Classifications 
 
The organization reports information regarding its financial position and activities according two classes of net assets: net assets 
with donor restrictions and net assets without donor restrictions. 
 
Net assets without donor restrictions - Net assets that are not subject to donor-imposed restrictions and may be expended for 
any purpose in performing the primary objectives of the organization and general activities. These net assets may be used at 
the discretion of the Organization's management and the board of directors. 
 
Net assets with donor restrictions - Net assets subject to donor-imposed restrictions. Some donor-imposed restrictions are 
temporary in nature; those restrictions will be met by actions of the organization or by the passage of time or other events 
specified by the donor. Other donor-imposed restrictions are perpetual in nature, where the donor stipulates those resources be 
maintained in perpetuity. 
 
Donor restricted contributions are reported as increases in net assets with donor restrictions if they are received with donor 
stipulations that limit the use of the donated assets. When a restriction expires, that is, when a stipulated time restriction ends, 
or purpose restriction is accomplished, net assets are reclassified from net assets with donor restrictions to net assets without 
donor restrictions in the statements of activities. 
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NOTE 11. DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNIT (Continued) 
 
Summary of the Foundation’s Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 
 
Cash and Cash Equivalents 
 
The Organization considers all cash and highly liquid financial instruments with original maturities of three months or less, 
which are neither held for nor restricted by donors for long-term purposes, to be cash and cash equivalents. Cash and highly 
liquid financial instruments restricted to art projects, endowments that are perpetual in nature, or other long-term purposes are 
excluded from this definition. 
 
Investments – Certificate of Deposits 
 
The organization records certificates of deposits purchases at cost plus accrued interest earned which is approximates market 
value, or if donated, at fair value on the date of donation.  
 
Accounts Receivable 
 
Accounts receivables consist of contribution receivables. All accounts receivable are expected to be collected within one year. 
 
Promises to Give 
 
The organization initially record unconditional promises to give and subsequently carried at fair value using present value 
techniques incorporating risk-adjusted discount rates designed to reflect the assumptions market participants would use in 
pricing the asset. The organization’s promises to give consisted of unconditional promises to give. Conditional promises to 
give, that is, with a measurable performance or other barrier are not recognized until the conditions on which they depend have 
been substantially met. The organization has no conditional promises to give for the years ended June 30, 2023 and 2022, 
respectively. 
 
Library and Art Collection 
 
Accessions are capitalized at cost if purchased and at appraised or fair value at the date of accession if received by donation. 
 
Property and Equipment and Depreciation 
 
Property and equipment are recorded at cost when purchased and fair value when donated. Depreciation is computed using the 
strange-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets. Maintenance and repairs are expensed currently. When items 
of property or equipment are sold or retired, the related cost and accumulated depreciation is removed from the accounts and 
any gain or loss is included in the statements of activities and changes in net assets.  
 

Culinary Equipment   5 years 
Office Equipment   3 years 

    Furniture    5 years 
 
The organization reviews the carry values of properties for impairment whenever events or circumstances indicate that the 
carrying value of an asset may not be recoverable. When considered impaired, an impairment loss is recognized to the extent 
carrying value exceeds the fair value of the assets. There were no indicators of asset impairment during the years ended June 
30, 2024 and 2023.  
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NOTE 11. DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNIT (Continued) 
 
Summary of the Foundation’s Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 
 
Revenue Recognition 
 
Revenue is recognized when earned and consists primarily of contributions and proceeds from special events. Contributions 
received are recorded as net assets without donor restrictions or net assets with donor restrictions, depending on the existence 
and/or nature of any donor-imposed restrictions. Donor restricted contributions are reported as an increase in net assets with 
donor restrictions, depending on the nature of restriction. When a restriction expires (that is, when a stipulated time restriction 
ends or purpose restriction is accomplished), net assets with donor restrictions are reclassified to net assets without donor 
restrictions and reported in the statements of activities as net assets released from restrictions. Special events revenue is 
comprised of an exchange element based upon the direct benefits donor receive and a contribution element of the difference. 
The Organization recognizes special events revenue equal to the fair value of direct benefits to donors when the special event 
takes place. The Organization recognizes the contribution element of special event revenue immediately.  
 
In-Kind Contributions 
 
Contributed donated professional services are recorded at the respective fair values of the services received. The organization 
recognized these services as contributions since the services require specialized skills and are performed by people with those 
skills and would otherwise be purchased by the organization. The organization benefited from in-kind salary donation, which 
were estimated to be and for the years ended June 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively. These amounts have been reported as both 
in-kind contribution revenue and expenses on the statement of activities. In addition to contributed professional services, 
volunteers contribute significant amounts of time to program services, and fundraising activities; however, the financial 
statements do not reflect the value of these contributed services because they do not meet recognition criteria prescribed by 
generally accepted accounting principles. 
 
Income Taxes 
 
The organization is organized as a nonprofit corporation and has been recognized by the IRS as exempt from federal income 
taxes under IRC Section 501(c)(3). Thus, it qualifies for the charitable contribution deduction under IRC Sections 
170(b)(1)(A)(vi).  The organization is annually required to file a Return of Organization Exempt from Income Tax (Form 990) 
with the IRS. In addition, the entities are subject to income tax on net income that is derived from business activities that are 
unrelated to their exempt purposes. Management has determined that the Foundation is not subject to unrelated business income 
tax and has not filed an Exempt Organization Business Income Tax Return (Form 990-T) with the IRS. 
 
Use of Estimates 
 
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America requires the Foundation to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and disclosures. 
Actual results may differ from those estimates. 
 
Functional Expenses 
 
The costs of providing various programs and support services have been summarized on a functional basis in the statement of 
activities. The allocation of expenses presents the natural classification detail of expenses by function. Accordingly, certain 
costs have been allocated among the programs and supporting services benefited.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

41

DRAFT



HUDSON COUNTY COMMUNITY COLLEGE 
(A Component Unit of Hudson County, New Jersey) 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2024 AND 2023 
 

 

 

NOTE 11. DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNIT (Continued) 
 
Summary of the Foundation’s Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 
 
Endowment 
 
The organization’s endowment consists of funds established by donors for scholarship purposes. Its endowment includes only 
donor-restricted endowment funds. As required by generally accepted accounting principles, net assets associated with 
endowment funds are classified and reported based on the existence or absence of donor-imposed restrictions. 
 
The Board of Trustees of the organization has interpreted the New Jersey Uniform Prudent Management of Institutional Funds 
Act (UPMIFA), as requiring the preservation of the fair value of the original gift as of the date of the donor-restricted 
endowment funds, unless there are explicit donor stipulations to the contrary. At June 30, 2024 and 2023, there are no such 
donor stipulations. As a result of this interpretation, the organization retain in perpetuity (a) the original value of initial and 
subsequent gift amounts donated to the endowment and (b) any accumulations to the endowment made in accordance with the 
direction of the applicable donor gift instrument at the time the accumulation is added. Donor-restricted amounts not retained 
in perpetuity are subject to appropriation for expenditure by us in a manner consistent with standard of prudence prescribed by 
UPMIFA. 
 
NOTE 12. RISK MANAGEMENT 
 
The College is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets; errors and 
omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The College maintains commercial insurance coverage for property and 
liability.   
 
For worker’s compensation insurance the College belongs to the New Jersey Community College Insurance Pool Worker’s 
Compensation Fund (the “Insurance Pool”).  The Insurance Pool was created by agreement among the founding community 
colleges, on June 24, 1987, a non-profit self-insurance pool, pursuant to the provisions of the New Jersey State Government 
Regulations Act, Chapter 204, P.L. 1985.  Effective July 1, 1987, the Insurance Pool established a Workers’ Compensation 
Fund providing workers’ compensation insurance to its members.  Premium payments are made to the insurance pool by 
participating community colleges as determined by the Insurance Pool’s independent insurance consultant.  
 
NOTE 13. FINANCIAL DEPENDENCY 
 
One of the College’s largest sources of revenue is appropriations from Hudson County and the State of New Jersey.  The 
College is economically dependent on these appropriations to carry on its operations. 
 
NOTE 14. CONTINGENCIES 

 
Litigation 
 
The College maybe party to legal proceedings and claims that arise in the ordinary course of business.  In the opinion of 
management, the ultimate outcome of the claims and litigation, if any, will not have a material adverse effect on the College’s 
financial position. 
 
Grants 
 
The College received financial assistance from the State of New Jersey and the U.S. Government in the form of grants and 
financial assistance.  Entitlement to the funds is generally conditional upon compliance with terms and conditions of the grant 
agreements and applicable regulations, including expenditure of the funds for eligible purposes.  The College is subject to the 
requirements of the Single Audit Act of 1984, as amended in 1996, which mandates that all revenues and expenditures from 
the grants and financial assistance are audited in conjunction with the College’s financial statements for compliance with grant 
requirements. As of June 30, 2024, the College estimates that no material liabilities will result from such audits. 
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NOTE 15. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 
 
Subsequent events have been evaluated through November 12, 2024, the date which the financial statements were available 
to be issued and concluded that no subsequent events have occurred that would require recognition in the financial statements 
or disclosure in the notes to the financial statements. 
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HUDSON COUNTY COMMUNITY COLLEGE
(A Component Unit of Hudson County, New Jersey)
SCHEDULE OF THE COLLEGE'S PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE NET PENSION LIABILITY
PUBLIC EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT SYSTEM (PERS)
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

June 30, 2024 June 30, 2023 June 30, 2022 June 30, 2021 June 30, 2020 June 30, 2019 June 30, 2018 June 30, 2017 June 30, 2016 June 30, 2015

College's proportion of the net pension liability 0.127772553% 0.134527230% 0.130239250% 0.118554277% 0.114867150% 0.109815256% 0.109004902% 0.105143518% 0.103111575% 0.107551610%

College's proportionate share of the net pension liability 18,507,055$     20,302,011$     15,428,792$     19,333,102$     20,697,318$     21,622,076$     25,374,599$     31,140,494$     23,146,482$     20,136,604$     

College's covered-employee payroll 12,046,466       11,769,874       11,499,633       11,235,596       10,977,622       10,781,964       10,589,813       10,085,536       9,100,123         7,411,708         

College's proportionate share of the net pension liability
as a percentage of its covered-employee payroll 153.63% 172.49% 134.17% 172.07% 188.54% 200.54% 239.61% 308.76% 254.35% 271.69%

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the
total pension liability 62.91% 62.91% 70.33% 58.32% 56.27% 53.60% 48.10% 40.14% 47.93% 52.08%

Note: The amounts presented for each fiscal year were determined as of the previous fiscal year-end.

This schedule is presented to illustrate the requiement to show information for 10 years in accordance with GASB Statement No. 68. However, until a 10-year trend is compiled, the College will only present information for those years for which information is
available. 
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HUDSON COUNTY COMMUNITY COLLEGE
(A Component Unit of Hudson County, New Jersey)
SCHEDULE OF COLLEGE CONTRIBUTIONS 
PUBLIC EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT SYSTEM (PERS)
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

June 30, 2024 June 30, 2023 June 30, 2022 June 30, 2021 June 30, 2020 June 30, 2019 June 30, 2018 June 30, 2017 June 30, 2016 June 30, 2015

Contractually required contribution 1,707,715$       1,696,453$       1,525,253$       1,296,924$       1,117,319$       1,092,307$       985,569$          903,552$          934,080$          886,483$          

Contributions in relation to the
contractually required contribution 1,707,715         1,696,453         1,525,253         1,296,924         1,117,319         1,092,307         985,569            903,552            934,080            886,483            

Contribution deficiency (excess) -$                      -$                      -$                      -$                      -$                      -$                      -$                      -$                      -$                      -$                      

College's covered-employee payroll 12,046,466$     11,769,874$     11,769,874$     11,499,633$     10,977,622$     10,785,964$     10,589,813$     10,085,536$     9,100,123$       7,411,708$       

Contributions as a percentage of
covered-employee payroll 14.18% 14.41% 12.96% 11.28% 10.18% 10.13% 9.31% 8.96% 10.26% 11.96%

Note: The amounts presented for each fiscal year were determined as of the previous fiscal year-end.

This schedule is presented to illustrate the requiement to show information for 10 years in accordance with GASB Statement No. 68. However, until a 10-year trend is compiled, the College will only present information for those years for which information is
available. 
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HUDSON COUNTY COMMUNITY COLLEGE
(A Component Unit of Hudson County, New Jersey)
SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN THE STATE'S PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF OPEB LIABILITY ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE COLLEGE AND RELATED RATIOS
STATE HEALTH BENEFITS LOCAL EDUCATION RETIRED EMPLOYEES OPEB PLAN
LAST SEVEN FISCAL YEARS

June 30, 2024 June 30, 2023 June 30, 2022 June 30, 2021 June 30, 2020 June 30, 2019 June 30, 2018

Balance, July 1 45,540,165$     53,588,515$     65,104,534$     36,508,693$     36,459,830$     53,569,430$     54,844,428$     

Changes reconized for the fiscal year:
Service cost 2,939,841         3,657,831         4,692,125         2,294,176         2,362,765         5,256,563         6,301,791         
Interest on the total OPEB liability 1,768,972         1,206,865         1,390,143         1,339,032         1,481,591         2,089,271         1,725,757         
Cahnge in benefit terms -                        -                        (57,038)             
Changes in assumptions 101,239            (12,216,558)      52,869              11,892,361       544,348            (4,183,948)        (8,107,453)        
Difference between expected and actual experience 1,211,485         460,597            (16,534,614)      14,169,334       (3,252,354)        (19,330,258)      -                        
Gross benefit payments (1,378,942)        (1,195,435)        (1,095,043)        (1,133,416)        (1,120,708)        (974,923)           (1,240,782)        
Contributions from the member 45,332              38,350              35,539              34,354              33,221              33,695              45,689              
Net changes 4,687,927         (8,048,350)        (11,516,019)      28,595,841       48,863              (17,109,600)      (1,274,998)        

Balance, June 30 50,228,092$     45,540,165$     53,588,515$     65,104,534$     36,508,693$     36,459,830$     53,569,430$     

College's proportionate share of OPEB liability -$                      -$                      -$                      -$                      -$                      -$                      -$                      
State's proportionate share of OPEB liability 50,228,092       45,540,165       53,588,515       65,104,534       36,508,693       36,459,830       53,569,430       

Total OPEB liability 50,228,092$     45,540,165$     53,588,515$     65,104,534$     36,508,693$     36,459,830$     53,569,430$     

College's covered employee payroll 30,240,579$     30,240,579$     29,517,382$     28,818,289$     28,561,695$     24,071,377$     21,179,626$     

Total OPEB Liability as a percentage of 
covered employee payroll 166.10% 150.59% 181.55% 225.91% 127.82% 151.47% 252.93%

Note: The amounts presented for each fiscal year were determined as of the previous fiscal year-end.

This schedule is presented to illustrate the requiement to show information for 10 years in accordance with GASB Statement No. 75. However, until a 10-year trend is compiled, the College will only present information for those years for which information is
available. 
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HUDSON COUNTY COMMUNITY COLLEGE
(A Component Unit of Hudson County, New Jersey)
NOTES TO THE REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

State Health Benefit 
Public Employees' Local Education
Retirement System Retired Employees

(PERS) OPEB Plan

Change in benefits None None

Changes in assumptions:
Discount rate:

As of June 30, 2024 7.00% 3.65%
As of June 30, 2023 7.00% 3.65%

Municipal bond rate:
As of June 30, 2024 Not Applicable 3.65%
As of June 30, 2023 Not Applicable 3.65%

Inflation rate:
As of June 30, 2024

Price 2.75% Not Applicable
Wage 3.25% Not Applicable

As of June 30, 2023
Price 2.75% Not Applicable
Wage 3.25% Not Applicable

Long-term expected rate of return
on pension plan investments:

As of June 30, 2024 7.00% 3.65%
As of June 30, 2023 7.00% 3.65%
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING 

AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

 
 
The Board of Trustees 
Hudson County Community College 
Jersey City, New Jersey 
 
We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the 
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the 
United States, the financial statements of Hudson County Community College (the “College”), a component unit of Hudson 
County, New Jersey, and the Hudson County Community College Foundation, Inc., the discretely presented component unit 
of the College as of and for the year ended June 30, 2024, which collectively comprise the College’s basic financial statements 
and the related notes to the financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated November 12, 2024.   
 
Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting  
 
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the College's internal control over financial 
reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of 
expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of 
the College’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the College’s internal control.  
 
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or employees, in 
the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A 
material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility 
that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented or detected and corrected on a timely 
basis.  A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a 
material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.  
 
Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the preceding paragraph and was not designed to 
identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies.  Given these 
limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses.  
However, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that have not been identified. 
 
Report on Compliance and Other Matters  
 
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the College’s financial statements are free from material misstatement, 
we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, 
noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. 
However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do 
not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required 
to be reported under Government Auditing Standards. 
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Purpose of this Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the result of that 
testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an 
integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal 
control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 

DONOHUE, GIRONDA, DORIA & TOMKINS, LLC 
Certified Public Accountants 

Secaucus, New Jersey 
November 12, 2024 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR FEDERAL AND STATE 

PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM 
GUIDANCE AND NEW JERSEY OMB CIRCULAR 15-08 

 
The Board of Trustees 
Hudson County Community College 
Jersey City, New Jersey 
 
Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal and State Program 
 
Opinion on Each Major Federal and State Program 
 
We have audited the Hudson County Community College’s, (the “College”) compliance with the types of compliance 
requirements identified as subject to audit in the U.S. Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Compliance Supplement and 
the New Jersey State Aid/Grant Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on each of the College’s 
major federal and state programs for the year ended June 30, 2024.  The College’s major federal and state programs are 
identified in the Summary of Auditor's Results Section of the accompanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs. 
 
In our opinion, the College complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that 
could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal and state programs for the year ended June 30, 2024. 
 
Basis for Opinion on Each Major Federal and State Program 
 
We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller 
General of the United States, the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform 
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance) and the New 
Jersey OMB Circular 15-08. Our responsibilities under those standards and the Uniform Guidance are further described in the 
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section of our report. 
 
We are required to be independent of the College and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with relevant 
ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for our opinion on compliance for each major federal and state program. Our audit does not provide a legal 
determination of the College’s compliance with the compliance requirements referred to above. 
 
Responsibilities of Management for Compliance 
 
Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements referred to above and for the design, implementation, and 
maintenance of effective internal control over compliance with the requirements of laws, statutes, regulations, rules, and 
provisions of contracts or grant agreements applicable to the College’s federal and state programs.  
 
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance 
 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether material noncompliance with the compliance requirements 
referred to above occurred, whether due to fraud or error, and express an opinion on the College’s compliance based on our 
audit. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an 
audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, Government Auditing Standards, and the Uniform 
Guidance will always detect material noncompliance when it exists. The risk of not detecting material noncompliance resulting 
from fraud is higher than for that resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Noncompliance with the compliance requirements referred to above is 
considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, it would influence the judgment 
made by a reasonable user of the report on compliance about the College’s compliance with the requirements of each major 
federal and state program as a whole. 
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In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, Government Auditing Standards, and the 
Uniform Guidance and New Jersey OMB Circular 15-08, we: 

 Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

 Identify and assess the risks of material noncompliance, whether due to fraud or error, and design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the
College’s compliance with the compliance requirements referred to above and performing such other procedures as
we considered necessary in the circumstances.

 Obtain an understanding of the College’s internal control over compliance relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances and to test and report on internal control over compliance in
accordance with the Uniform Guidance and New Jersey OMB Circular 15-08, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the College’s internal control over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is
expressed.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and 
timing of the audit and any significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in internal control over compliance that we 
identified during the audit. 

Report on Internal Control over Compliance  

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over compliance does not 
allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, 
noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal 
control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there 
is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be 
prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a 
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a 
federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit 
attention by those charged with governance.  

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities 
for the Audit of Compliance section above and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance 
that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies in internal control over compliance. Given these limitations, 
during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material 
weaknesses, as defined above. However, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies in internal control over compliance 
may exist that were not identified. 

Our audit was not designed for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. 
Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed. 

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control 
over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the Uniform Guidance and New Jersey OMB’s 
Circular 15-08. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose. 

DONOHUE, GIRONDA, DORIA & TOMKINS, LLC 
Certified Public Accountants 

Secaucus, New Jersey 
November 12, 2024 
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HUDSON COUNTY COMMUNITY COLLEGE
(A Component Unit of Hudson County)
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

Federal Pass-Through
Assistance Entity Passed 

Listing Identifying Through To
Number Number Expenditures Subrecipients

U.S. Department of Labor
Passed through Bergen Community College

H-1B Job Training Grant (New Jersey Healthworks) 17.268 * 341,298$           -$  
Passed through County College of Morris

H-1B Job Training Grant (New Jersey Healthworks) 17.268 * 107,919             - 

Total U.S. Department of Labor 449,217             - 

U.S. Department of Treasury
Passed through New Jersey Office of Secretary of Higher Education:

Mental Health in Higher Education: Community Provider Partnership
and Professional Development Grant 21.027 * 44,015 - 

National Endowment for the Humanaties
Passed through New Jersey Council for the Humanities

Jersey City Oral History 45.129 * 8,997 - 

U.S National Science Foundation
Reseach and Development Cluster:

Northern New Jersey Bridges to the Baccalaureate Degree 47.076 * 49,785 - 
Strengthening Community College and Workforce Partnership 47.076 * 59,042 - 

Total U.S. National Science Foundation 108,827             - 

U.S. Department of Education
Student Financial Assistance Cluster:

Federal Supplemental Educational Opportunity Grants 84.007 * 456,037             - 
Federal Work Study Programs 84.033 * 396,210             - 
Federal Pell Grant Program 84.063 * 22,100,510 - 
Federal Direct Student Loans 84.268 * 1,471,544 - 

Total Student Financial Assistance Cluster 24,424,301        - 

Higher Education Institutional Aid: Golden Door/La Puerta Doada 84.031S * 450,143             - 

Congressionally Directed Funded Community Project 84.116Z * 172,610             

COVID-19 - Education Stabilization Fund (ESF):
Passed through New Jersey office of the Secretary of Higher Education:

Governor's Emergency Education Relief Fund 84.425C * 42,583 - 
Higher Education Emergency Relief Fund (HEERF):

HEERF - Institutional Aid Portion 84.425F * 199,613             - 
Total COVID-19 - Education Stabilization Funds 242,196             - 

Passed through State of New Jersey
Career and Technical Education - Perkins 84.048A V048A190030 1,162,522          - 

Gaining Early Awareness and Readiness for Undergraduate Programs 84.334 * 34,200 - 

Total U.S. Department of Education 26,485,972        - 

Total Federal Awards 27,097,028$      -$  

* 

Passed through Grantor/
Program or Cluster Title

Federal Grantor/

- Information Not Available

The accompanying Notes to Schedules of Expenditure of Federal Awards and State Financial Assistance are an integral part of this schedule
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HUDSON COUNTY COMMUNITY COLLEGE
(A Component Unit of Hudson County)
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF STATE FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

Grant Grant Period Cumulative
Account Number From To Expenditures Expenditures

New Jersey Department Labor and Workforce Development
NJ Pathways Learning Apprentices to a College Education Program * 12/01/22 06/30/24 115,861$           115,861$           

Workforce Development Partnership Program-Apprenticeship 02/15/24 08/15/25 13,740 

Total New Jersey Department Labor and Workforce Development 129,601             

Higher Education Assistance Authority
Tuition Aid Grants 24-100-074-2405-007 07/01/23 06/30/24 4,879,337          4,879,337          

New Jersey Student Tuition Assistance Reward Scholarship
(NJ Stars) Program 24-100-074-2405-313 7/1/202 06/30/24 71,448 71,448 

Total Higher Education Assistance Authority 4,950,785          

Office of the Secretary of Higher Education (OSHE)
Educational Opportunity Fund (EOF):

Article IV - Educational Opportunity Fund Program Support 24-100-074-2401-001 07/01/23 06/30/24 482,382             482,382             
Supplementary Education Program Grant:

Article IV - Summer Program Support 24-100-074-2401-002 07/01/23 06/30/24 27,351 27,351 
Total Educational Opportunity Fund 509,733             

New Jersey Community College Opportunity Grant:
Community College Opportunity Grant 24-100-074-2405-332 09/15/23 08/01/24 3,057,432          5,831,314          
Community College Opportunity Grants - Special Funding 24-100-074-2400-061 09/15/23 08/01/24 333,816             333,816             

3,391,248          
Passed through NJ Council of Community Colleges:

New Jersey Pathways to Career Opportunities (work phase) * 07/01/23 06/30/24 166,102             323,004             
Summer Institute * 07/01/23 06/30/24 383,707             383,707             

Hunger-Free Campus Grant 24-100-074-2400-064 07/01/23 06/30/24 145,645             145,645             

County College-Based Center for Adult Transition 24-100-074-2400-078 06/15/23 06/30/24 526,357             526,357             

Some Education, No Degree (SCND) 24-100-074-2400-082 01/01/23 06/30/24 68,241 68,241 

Total Department of Higher Education 10,271,419        

Department of Treasury
Higher Education Administration:

Operational Costs - County Colleges 24-100-082-2155-015 7/1/20223 06/30/24 11,234,416        11,234,416        

Alternate Benefit Program 24-100-082-2155-017 07/01/23 06/30/24 1,264,708          1,264,708          

Division of Pensions and Benefits:
On-Behalf Post Retirement Medical Benefits Contribution * 07/01/23 06/30/24 2,281,129          2,281,129          

Total Department of Treasury 14,780,253        

Total State Financial Assistance 25,051,672        

Less:
On-Behalf Post Retirement Medical Benefits Contribution (2,281,129)         

Total Subject to Single Audit 22,770,543$      

* - Information Not Available

State of New Jersey Grantor/
Pass Through Grantor/

Program or Cluster Title

The accompanying Notes to Schedule of Federal Awards and State Financial Assistance are an integral part of this schedule.
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HUDSON COUNTY COMMUNITY COLLEGE 
(A Component Unit of Hudson County, New Jersey) 
NOTES TO SCHEDULES OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS  
     AND STATE FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024 
 

 

 

NOTE 1. GENERAL 
 
The accompanying Schedules of Expenditures of Federal Awards and State Financial Assistance include federal and state 
award activity of the Hudson County Community College (the “College”).  The College is defined in Note 1 to the College’s 
basic financial statements.  All federal and state awards received directly from federal and state agencies, as well as federal and 
state awards received directly from federal and state agencies, as well as federal and state awards passed through other 
governmental agencies, are included on the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards and State Financial Assistance. 
 
NOTE 2. BASIS OF ACCOUNTING 
 
The accompanying schedules of expenditures of Federal Awards and State Financial Assistance of the Collage are presented 
on the accrual basis of accounting.  The information in these schedules is presented in accordance with the types of compliance 
requirements described in the U.S. Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Compliance Supplement and the New Jersey 
Office of Management and Budget Circular 15-08. Therefore, some amounts presented in these schedules may differ from 
amounts presented in, or used in the preparation of, the basic financial statements. 
 
NOTE 3. INDIRECT COST METHOD 
 
The College has elected not to use the 10 percent de minimus indirect cost rate as allowed under the Uninform Guidance. 
 
NOTE 4. LOAN PROGRAMS 
 
The College is responsible only for the performance of certain administrative duties with respect to the Federal Direct Student 
Loan Program and the State of New Jersey Alternative Loan and New Jersey Class Loans and, accordingly, these loans are not 
included in the College’s basic financial statements. It is not practical to determine the balance of loans outstanding to students 
of the College under this program.   
 
NOTE 5. RELATIONSHIP TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 
As explained in note 4, the College is responsible only for the performance and certain administrative duties with respect to the 
Federal Direct Student Loan Program.  Such funding is presented in the schedule of expenditures of federal awards, however, 
is not presented in the basic financial statements.  
 
NOTE 6. RELATIONSHIP TO FEDERAL AND STATE FINANCIAL REPORTS 
 
Amounts reported in the accompanying schedules agree with the amounts reported in the related federal and state financial 
reports. 
 
NOTE 7. ON-BEHALF PROGRAMS NOT SUBJECT TO STATE SINGLE AUDIT 
 
The amount of $2,281,129 reported as post-retirement medical benefits represent the OPEB expense amounts incurred by the 
State on behalf of the College for the year ended June 30, 2024. On-behalf expenditures for the College by the State are not 
subject to a State single audit and, therefore Notes are, are excluded from major program determination. The Schedule of State 
Financial Assistance provides a reconciliation of State financial assistance reported in the College’s basic financial statements 
and the amount subject to the State single audit and major program determination. 
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HUDSON COUNTY COMMUNITY COLLEGE
(A Component Unit of Hudson County, New Jersey)
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONS COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

Section I - Summary of Auditor's Results

FINANCIAL STATEMENT SECTION

A) Type of auditor's report issued: Unmodified

B) Internal control over financial reporting:

1) Material weakness(es) identified? Yes  No

2) Significant deficiency(ies) identified? Yes  None reported

C) Noncompliance material to basic financial statements noted? Yes  No

FEDERAL AWARD SECTION

D) Internal Control over major programs:

1) Material weakness(es) identified? Yes  No

2) Significant deficiency(ies) identified? Yes  None reported

E) Type of auditor's report issued on compliance for major programs: Unmodified

F) Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported
in accordance with section 2 CFR 200.516(a)? Yes  No

G) Identification of major programs:

Federal Assistance Listing Number(s) FAIN Number(s) Name of Federal Program or Cluster

Student Financial Assistance Cluster:
Federal Supplemental Educational Opportunity

84.007 * Grants
84.033 * Federal Work Study Programs
84.063 * Federal Pell Grant Program
84.268 * Federal Direct Student Loans

84.048A * Career and Technical Education - Perkins

H) Dollar threshold used to distinguish between
type A and type B Programs:

I) Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee?  yes no

* - Information Not Available

$750,000
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HUDSON COUNTY COMMUNITY COLLEGE
(A Component Unit of Hudson County, New Jersey)
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONS COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

Section I - Summary of Auditor's Results

STATE FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE SECTION

J) Dollar threshold used to distinguish between
type A and type B programs:

K) Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee?  yes no

L) Internal control over financial reporting:

1) Material weakness(es) identified? yes  no

2) Significant deficiency(ies) identified? yes  none reported

M) Type of auditor's report issued on compliance for major programs: Unmodified

N) Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported
in accordance with Applicable N.J. OMB Circular 15-08? yes  no

O) Identification of major programs:

State Grant/Project Number(s) Name of State Program

Higher Education Administration:
23-100-082-2155-002 Operational Costs - County Colleges
23-100-082-2155-017 Alternative Benefit Programs

* - Information Not Available

$750,000
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HUDSON COUNTY COMMUNITY COLLEGE 
(A Component Unit of Hudson County, New Jersey) 
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024 

Section III - Federal Awards and State Financial Assistance Findings and Questioned Costs 

(This section identifies audit findings required to be reported by 2 CFR 200 Section .516 of the Uniform Administrative 
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, and New Jersey OMB Circular Letter 15-08, as 
applicable.) 

No matters were reported. 
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HUDSON COUNTY COMMUNITY COLLEGE 
(A Component Unit of Hudson County, New Jersey) 
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024 
 

 

 

Section II - Financial Statement Findings 
 

(This section identifies the significant deficiencies, material weaknesses, fraud, illegal acts, violations of provisions of contracts 
and grant agreements, and abuse related to the financial statements for which Government Auditing Standards requires 
reporting.) 
 
No matters were reported. 
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HUDSON COUNTY COMMUNITY COLLEGE 
(A Component Unit of Hudson County, New Jersey) 
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS  
     AS PREPARED BY MANAGEMENT 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024 

(This section identifies the status of prior year findings related to the basic financial statements and federal and state awards 
that are required to be reported in accordance with Chapter 6.12 of Government Auditing Standards, U.S. OMB Uniform 
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards and New Jersey OMB’s Circular 
15-08, as applicable.)

STATUS OF PRIOR YEAR FINDINGS 

No matters were reported. 
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